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Esh Holdings Limited

Chairman’s report

_ As expected, 2021 demonstrated a significant turnaround from the previous year’s results, which were of course -

marred by the dramatic impact of the global COVID pandemic. And whilst our group continued ‘to feel the
aftershocks of the pandemic during the year; be that supply chain challenges or resource issues due to the ongoing
need for people to isolate, the business delivered a remarkable improvement in profitability.

* This improvement was underpinned by the cumulative efforts over the last four years to reposition the group to
target resilient sectors of the construction industry which demonstrate long term stable fundamentals, as well as
the implementation ofa comprehensive business strategy targeting selected growth vianiche channels to market.

Moreover, our efforts to SImphfy our balance sheet and yield llquldlty from underperformmg assets has led to
the business being completely debt free for the first time in many years.

These remarkable: feats could not have been achieved had it not been for the dedication and hard work of our
talented team at Esh, as well as our incredibly loyal supply chains, valued customers and other critical

stakeholders — Esh is one big team that extends beyond the confines of our business boundary. We are who we

are due to the ingenuity and determination of a large group of people who believe that we only succeed if we all
succeed — our gratitude, as always, goes out to all these groups, and we look forward to working with you all in
the future as\we drive forward for all of our benefit.

Non-Exegutivé Chairman




Esh Holdings Limited

Strategic repert :
"I"he directors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2021,

Principal activities
The principal activities of the Group durmg the year were civil engineering, house bulldmg, and general

construction.
’ The principal activity of the Company is that of holding investments.

Overvzew :
The Group entered 2021 in a strong position. Our order book was being mamtamed at record levels, we had

further reduced our fixed cost base during 2020 to set up a lower break even point, and we had successfully
pointed the business to segments of the market that were proving to be res;hent and through channels that
demonstrate a much lower level of aggressive competitiveness.

Moreover, our balance sheet was signiﬁcantly simpler following intensive work over the previous years to drive
cash from under performing assets, as well as improve our working capital cycle, resultmg in the highest level of
liquidity seen for many years. :

Thxs solid foundation has been hugely beneficial, and provided. the stablhty we needed to address some of the
new headwinds we faced during 2021. '

'Of course, the global pandemic continued to exert its influence on our industry and business during the year. Our
staff and those of our supply chains were required to adhere to Government guidance to isolate when exposed to )
the.virus. This naturally led to a shortage of trades and labour on a number of our contracts, as well as limited
material availability from our core suppliers. With added Brexit-related stresses, supply chain availability
emerged as the key operational challenge through the early part of 2021, which inexorably led to a degree of
contract delays and programme prolongations which have had a moderate impact on our results for the year.

Similarly, it was inevitable that a constrained supply chain would lead to higher input costs. Over the latter part
of 2021, and continuing into 2022, we have witnessed cost inflation at levels and frequencies not seen in a
generation.” Qur principal efforts to manage this situation were to try to achieve cost / price neutrality across as
- many of our revenue streams as possible. ‘Thankfully, due to the type of client and contractual nature of our
relationships, we were able to insulate a large part of the business from these increases :- B

A) Our private housing division, Homes by Esh, has been able to pass on all of its cost‘inﬂation'though

sales price increases, with sales price inflation outstripping overall cost inflation.

B). A proportion of our contracts are of a ‘cost plus’ nature, allowing us to achieve immediate pass through

of cost inflation. : :

C) Our work to install infrastructure for Private House Builders are of relatively short duration, allowing

new cost rates to be priced into new jobs, with only limited impact on contracts that are in flight:

D) A reasonable proportion of our contracts have provision for cost fluctuation based upon agreed indices.
That said, our business was not fully immune to these cost increases, and a sizeable proportion of long term, JCT
_ contracts have experienced significant cost inflation that could not be contractually passed on. Whilst we are
‘ working with our clients to seek some recovery or compensation for such extriordinary events, we will not be
able to fully offset this impact, and as such, our results for the year have been affected.
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Strategic report (continued)

Overview (continued)
Whilst there, remains little we can do about these ‘in-flight” contracts, we have worked hard to protect ourselves

from mﬂatlonary pressures on new contracts. Fixed price bidding is largely ended, with us working with clients
to agree provisional sums for inflation or cost increase recovery mechanisms. Whilst ostensibly these measures
have been accepted by clients, we are aware that a lack of cost certainty is challenging the viability of some
schemes in our pipeline, which may lead to some projects: being pushed back. To date, our experience of such
delays has been limited, but we retain a healthy level of caution as future months unfold.

Compounding these supply chain and resource pressures were a small cluster of challenging contracts in our
commercial bunldmg division. Whllst most of these contracts are now closed out, their impact upon our 2021
- results were notable, albeit contained, with all liabilities now- determined and accounted for

However, whilst we undoubtedly faced some challenges during 2021, we also saw some record performances
from several parts of our group:- :

A) Our General Civils division completed the group’s largest contract to date, the £44m SSTC3 highways
contract for Sunderland City Council ~ this contract contained a number of engineering challenges, but
was delivered successfully, on time and on budget. '

B) Our Frameworks division, which includes the work we do for Northumbrian Water Group, continues to
deliver an exceptional service, yielding growth in the volume and scope of works delivered in
partnership with the global engineering giant, Stantec.

C) With the backdrop of a very strong private housing market, our civils mfrastrucmre division, workmg

under the brand Lumsden and Carroll, achieved strong year on year growth. in tumnover from both
existing and several new clients.
D). Our social Housing Division, Esh Living, enjoyed considerable turnover growth, supported by its

position on a number of key frameworks, as well as a near doubling of projects secured through our

‘land led” channel to market. Both these routes to market provide a lower risk profile and stronger
margin opportunities.

Whilst our group is now much simpler in structure and focus, our efforts to deliberately design a business model
that allows the smoothing of positive and negative factors across our operations has pﬁd dividends. In
maintaining a balanced portfolio across complimentary sectors of the market, we have enjoyed one of the most

.significant periods of growth in our history. The result is a £8m improvement in underlying operating profit
compared with 2020, from a £32m increase in turnover. . ' '

Moreover, our balance sheet is now debt free, wnth us not drawing upon any of our credit facilities at any time
during the year. We ended the year with no debt, and cash of nearly £21m. Added to a £7m undrawn credit
facility, we recorded the highest level of liquidity in recent memory.

'

T am incredibly proud of the team at Esh. Their ;'esilience, commitment and ingenuity in dealing with the many

challenges we have faced over the last four years as we worked to fundamentally reposition the group is nothing
short of amazing. This, combined with our ever loyal a suppomve supply chains, and ‘blue chip’ client base,
providés the key ingredients for our success.

. And whilst we continue to face headwinds,. the strength and depth of our talent pool, combined with a business
model that is working, gives us the confidence to drive forward with our strategic agenda..
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Strategic 'repbrt (continued)

Strategy update : :
As with all good strategic plans, they remain relevant and current despite the emergence of unplanned challenges.
Our strategic agenda is no dlfferent

The Group Restructuring Programme is now complete, having divested our final non-core subsndlary, Deerness
Fencing and Landscapmg, in January 2022. ’ : T,

The Group is now organised into 3 core business units:

L.
2.
3.

Civil engineering services to the Utilities, Private Housing and General Infrastructure sectors
New construction and maintenance services to the Commercial and Soctal Housing sectors
Private housing development ) ) -

All of the above are delivered in a conﬁﬁed Geography spanning from South Yorkshire to Northumberland, and
almost exclusively on the east side of the Pennines.

Our 7 point strategic plan remains focused on the following key areas:-
: ~ .

1.

Targeted growth

By sticking to our core competencles and within our confined geography, we will drive a modest growth

in turnover, but with a firm grip on the risk/reward equation in tenders and land bids, will target
continuous margin expansion. The key driver of this will be an increase in the proportion of revenues
secured via ‘land led’, framework appointed and partnership-based contracts, with a target of 75% of
all revenues secured via this route to market. ' We will also maintain a manageable balance of revenues
from both cyclical and non-cyclical sectors, ensuring a reasonably consistent revenue stream throughout
the economic cycle.

‘Quality.

Deployed through industry leadmg quahty systems and processes, we will maintain a relentless focus
on operational quality control. We will target “right.first time’, reducmg remedial cost and so improve
customer satisfaction to drive a higher proportion of repeat business.  Maintenance of robust, reliable
and high-quality supply chain partnerships will be a key component of this strategy .

Operatlonal Efficiency

" By deploying tight bidding controls and contract due diligence, we will drive a controlled increase in

the overall size and quality of our contracts, leveraging our operational infrastructure and scale to drive
cost efficiency throughout our operations. Continuous improvement in programme management and
quality control, along with an efficient back-office infrastructure utilising the latest technology will
deliver a lean overall cost structure, underpinned by an optimum fixed cost base that supports a low
break even point so as to avoid poor contract pricing behaviours.

Capltal efficiency and Financial Stewardshlp

We will continue to focus on short-term working capital lock up across the business through effective -

management processes and careful selection of private development sites that permit a rapid cash cycle.
We will ensure robust and effective financial controls that drive a'deep understanding of our working
capital profile and how cash behaves through the contract lifecycle; ensuring we have adequate liquidity
to support operations as well as investment for growth. Any Shareholder distributions will be subject
to thorough forward liquidity forecasts, and only when the board are comfortable that our liquidity
requirements would not be compromised. : '
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Strategic report (continued)

5.

Social Value and Net Zero
We will leverage our industry leading and award winning social and economic value systems and
processes to enhance our competitive position and to drive repeat business in our core geographles

. through our 4 point LOCAL agenda:

1 Emp!oying Locat
2. Buying Local

3. Educating Local
4 Engaging Local

Furthermore, we will commit toa long-range plan to achieve Net Zero carbon from our operations under
all defined scopes. We will achieve this ambitious target through intensive collaboration with our client
base and supply chains.

Talent and Skills

We w1H focus on attractmg and retaining the best talent we can f nd Through active development,

succession planning, talent management and reward processes, we will strive to be an employer of
choice in our core market segments. Our organisation will be underpinned by a set of core values based
on Care, Trust, lntegnty, Respect, Teamwork and Accountability — Values that are congruent with a

. modern, forward thinKing organisation that people want to be part of.

Health, Safety and Envnronment

We will continue to focus on our industry leading heaith and safety agenda, wtilising cutting edge
processes and controls to embed a ‘never relax’ culture on all our sites. Our overarching ESH SAFE
programme (Everybody Safely Home) underpins a comprehensive communications system that ensures
safe practices are at the heart of all we'do. We will also play our part towards ‘net zero’ through the
application of low carbon materials, solutions and processes in our bids and projects, whilst continuing
to seek low carbon opportunities in all of our operations, which includes a new Hybrid working pattern,
allowing flexibility on work locations thereby reducing our carbon emissions-through fower levels of
commuting.

"We are confident that the relentless execution of this strategic agenda will delight our customers with a quality
and service level that is ‘gold standard” and so we will become the contractor, developer and employer of choice
in our operating geographies, with the ultimate goal of delivering strong growth in profitability and liquidity.
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Strategic report (continued) S

" The Market :
At the time of writing, considerable uncertainties have eméiged in the global and domestic market environment,

with rampant cost inflation, limited supply chain avallablhty and both fiscal and monetary policy dynamws
fuelling a palpable level of uncertamty,

However, by design, we have pointed the business to segments of the market that have and continue to
demonstrate the following characteristics :- '

Have resilience and/or counter cyclical behaviour over the économic cycle - -
Have a strong political / fiscal agenda that is unlikely to change over the mcdlum term
Are not overly congested :
Have reasonably high barriers to em:y
- Play to our core strengths and differentiators

woA e -

And so, despite the aforementioned uncertainties, our chosen ‘market segments continue to demonstrate these
. desired characteristics, which can be summarised as follows :-

Utnlmcs
Our Utilities and associated Environmental clients remain committed to major mvestment in mamtammg and

upgrading their networks and facilities. With the current AMP programme nearing completion, there remains a
large amount of pent up demand from this sector that nebds to be satisfied. Through our strategic partnership
with global engineering giant Stantec, we remain well placed to benefit from this demand over the next few years.

Local Authorities )
Our Local Authority clients continue to present a strong pipeline of projects covering both 1nfmstructure and

general construction. Whilst their capital budgets are rio doubt bearing the strain of considerable cost inflation,
agendas such as ‘levelling up’ look set to underpin strong demand from this sector. Our position on key
procurement frameworks will position the business to enjoy a healthy level of participation in this segment.

- 'Private Housing
At the time or writing, the private housing market continues to demonstrate strong demand with pricing and

sales volumes holding at near record highs. It would be foolish, however, to ignore the macro economic and
monetary policy factors that are rapidly taking hold. With an unavoidable cost of living crisis looming, fuelled
in the main by unprecedented rises in energy,' fuel and food costs, combined with tightening monetary policy
pushing up the cost of bomwing, thereis a wide expectation that the Private Housing market will cool over the
latter part of 202 and into 2023. Whilst our revenues are now less exposed to this market segment than was
previously, we have contingency plans in place to manage any downturn that may arise. Furthermore, our balance
sheet has very littie exposure to any down valuations due to a limited forward land bank, constrained by our self-
imposed capital limits. Longer term, however, the country remains chronically short of new housing stock, which
provides for sttong demand and price fundamentals as we emerge from whatever short-term challenges arise,
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Strategic report (continued)

Affordable Housing - . :
The chronic shortage of housing stock is also a key factor that underpins the considerable demand for new bu1ld

affordable homes. With a new round of Government funding announced, combined with the significant amount
of private placement capital funding secured by the large registered providers, we continue to expect a strong
pipeline of projects across both the North East and Yorkshire. .With our preferred route to market being via ‘land
led” channels, we expect to see our revenues demonstrate a diluted risk profile as well as further margin
expansion. Whilst cost inflation pressures are challenging the viability of some schemes, particularly where land
value expectations are inflated, our efficient delivery model, combined with robust supply chains should satisfy
the necessary economics to support viability.

Alongside the demand for new construction, there is now a clear growth in. the demand for existing stock

refurbishment and retrofit of green energy solutions. Whilst some of these requirements still need to be defined

and matched with supply chain capabilities, our long held pedigree in affordable housing mamtenance will
- position us well to take advantage of these growing market segments.

Other Market Factors ‘
Whilst our business model is pointed to robust segments of the market that are demonstrating strong demand

characteristics, as discussed, our group is not immune from the supply side constraints that are prevalent across
the whole economy. Whilst we have worked hard to mitigate the impact of these challenges, they have inevitably
-had some impact on our financial performance during 2021 and into 2022. Fortunately, oir mix of revemie, and
strong underlyirfg margins have sustained a commendable level of profitability, which we expect to continue
through 2022. : : -

And whilsxAg'eopolitical events will continue to' exert unwelcomed influence over the domestic and global
economy, we will ensure we focus on the things that we can control by executing on our strategic plan, and
ensunng we maintain a flexible and agile operating model that can be adjusted to suit whatever tradmg conditions
prevail.

Key performance indicators- . .
' 2021 2020

(Restated)
Turnover, including share of joint ventures ' ' £278.0m ‘ £236.0m
Change in turnover . ) . - 17.3% - 11.0%
Gross profit margin S : 6.7% A 4.9%
Operating profit » ' £3.9m © (£4.2m)
Profit before taxation attributable to owners of the parent -  £3.0m (£5.9m)
Cashat bankandinhand o ’ ' £20.8m £15.4m
Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities £6.6m £4.7m
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Strategic report (continued)

Business Review
The business reported an operating profit (before excephonal items) of £4.0m. This represents 2£8m tumaround .

from the previous year, which was of course heavily impacted by COVID lock downs. Whilst the global
pandemic continued to exert pressure on the business during the year, these pressures transitioned from
operational difficulties to supply chain constraints and elevated levels of input cost inflation, Although the
acceleration of these i issues was seen running thmugh the second half of 2021 and into 2022, given the nature of
long-term contract accountmg, the full life impact on contracts required us to make adjustments to' cumulative
margins recorded through 2021. Moreover, we encountered some operational challenges on a small cluster of -
aforementioned Commercial Build contracts, which provided a further drag on profitability.

A profit before tax of £3.0m is after recording fixed interest costs associated with our group wide credit facility
and finance costs related to our Private Housing business, Homes by Esh. This represents an £8.9m improvement
over the previous year. : :

In addition to the considerable improvements in profitability, there has also been a significant improvement in
" the balance sheet. As the management team continued to focus on driving maximum capital efficiency, the group
ended the-year with cash of £21m and zero debt. The group’s £9.2m revolving credit line remained undrawn at
all times during the year. This is the highest level of liquidity the group has carried in recent memory, and in the
- interest of clarity, the group has not at any time taken advantage of any of the government backed COVI'D
recovery credit lines. .

Future Developm ents - Financial Year 2022 Outlook C
With the ongoing challenges associated with COVID showing signs of dissipating, our financial year 2022 looks

setto be dommaxed by ongoing supply chain constraints and further input cost inflation. The group has worked
hard to use its strong supply chain relationships to mitigate these issues, and has engaged in encouraging dialogue
with a broad range of empathic clients who appea.r willing to agree to contract value uplifts outside of the scope
of the original contracts.

Fortunately, our work to shift the price basis of new contracts away from any formal fixed price element, as well
as our strategic shift away from high risk and complex single stage design and build projects is yielding a much
more protected and insulated forward order book.

With work continuing to complete the residue of the challenging commercial build contracts during the year, of
nearly all will be complete during 2022, we maintain our expectation for further margin expansion in the second
balf of 2022 and again into 2023, underpinned by the maintenance of a record secured and probable order book
standing in excess of £500m for 2022 and 2023. ‘

Furthermore, we continue to maintain solid levels of liquidity, which has permitted further investment in land for

- our Homes by Esh business, as well as over £1.3m in replacement plant and machinery, a reasonable proportion
of which is targeted at developmo adjacent services for our utilities clients, operatmg under the brand name of
Esh Drainage Solutions.

. All these factors provide a solid backdrop for. engaging with various credit providers to seek a simpler banking
facility towards the latter part of 2022, with strong appetite demonstrated from both our existing, and new credit
providers. ’ : .
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Strategic-‘report (_contihued)

Principal nsks and uncertamties

The construction industry is exposed to numerous risks and challenges, with the added dunensron of the after
effects of the global pandemic and the considerable pressures from supply chain constraints and input cost
inflation. The management team remains vigilant to these risks and challenges, and will continue to adapt the
organisation to the environments within which it operates.

The board is confident that the now rationalised and more focussed business model, combined with a set of .
business.activities that are diverse enough, yet sufficiently complimentary, will enable effective management of
risk across all of the sectors in which the Group operates.

The principal risks faced by the Group and the action taken to mitigate these are presented'in the table below.
" These are considered to be the most important to the future development and performance of the business.

Risk description

How it is mitigated

Project execution

The Group undertakes construction, refurbishment
] and maintenance projects. We need to continue to
deliver these within programmes and. match or
éxceed clients’ requirements, profitably and within
agreed financial parameters.
Successful delivery of many of these projects
depends on  the successful implementation and
maintenance’ of a range- of operational and
commercial procedures and controts.

Each business unit has defined operating procedures to address the
risks inherent in project delivery. Furthermore, a well-established
commercial and financial risk management framework is in
operation, using structured review meetings and reporting, with
key risks identified early in-the project delivery.

We also have pubhc indemnity cover ‘to provide further
safeguards.

Tenﬂering

Through our different business units, we seek to win
profitable work through a large number of
competitive tenders and contract negotiations.

This depends on our ability to price and add value in
our tender offering, driven by an efficient operating
model, and a clear focus on quality delivery and
added value. .

All bids are subject to proven, rigorous estimating and tendering
processes within a defined framework, using skilled resources.
We have delegated authority levels for approving all tenders and a
formal tender review process.

We undertake reviews following both successful and unsuccessful
tenders to ensure we learn from them and apply Lhose lessons to
future tenders.

Our culture of adding value within the communities in which we
work provides a point of  differentiation from many of our
competitors, producing upper quartilc tender success rates.

The group has also increased the amount of turnover that is secured
via ‘land led". directly negotiated or two-stage tender routes, which
significantly reduces the risks and challenges associated with pure
competitively tendered projects.

Furthermore, the group has all but eliminated fixed - price
tendering, offering clients provisional sums or pre-determined cost
increase mechanisms to ensure future revenues are insulated as far
as possible from the effects and volatility of input cost inflation.




Esh Holdings Limited

Strategic report (continued)

Prihcipal risks and uncertai‘nties (éontinueg

Risk description

How it is mitigated

People

We need to recruit and retain the best management
and employees. These members of staff should have

. appropriate competencies and also share our values
and behaviours.

" We measure all potential recruits for key roles in the organisation’

against a competency framework. We undertake staff appraisals to
review the toles, competencies, performances and potential of
personnel. We have a well-developed succession planning process
to identify and develop high potential personnel to fill key roles.
People matters are reviewed regularly and discussed at all levels
within the organisation and by the Board.

We have appropriate remuneration and incentive packages, which |
includes the selective allocation of growth equity, to help us attract
and retain key employees. We also use a well-connected group of
recruitment consultants and advisors to ensure we connect with the
best talent within the industry.

Supply chain -

We are reliant on our supply chain parmers for
successful operational delivery, which means we are
also exposed to a variety of risks in the supply chain.
The group is also exposed to the global issue of cost
price inflation.

.

| Through selective procurement allocation, we have been able to

Our strategic supply chain management processes, where possible,
aligns us to large. robust suppliers whose access to material and
resources is preferred given their size and scale; a factor equally
supported by our own size, regional presence and buying capacity.
We develop long-term relationships with our subcontractors,
working closely with them to understand their operations and work
with them to ensure their capacity planning can be optimised.

We aim to work as much as possible with preferred suppliers and
subcontractors who undergo rigorous, risk-based prequalification
processes and share our valués. We aim to avoid becoming over
reliant on any one supplier or subcontractor.

leverage strong commitment from otr supply chain to ensure
maximum availability of materials and labour. The group has
implemented more robust forward planning processes to provide
our supply chains with as much forward visibility as possible,
significantly mitigating the risk of supply shortages. Moreover,
we have, where sensible, concentrated spend with core suppliers
to maximise rebate opportunities in the face of enormous cost price

Health and safety

inflation.

| The Group works on projects which require
continuous monitoring and mzmagement of health
| and safety risks.

.environmental process.

The Group has a highly developed health, safety and
This process is underpinned by
documented procedures and working practices. Policy is set by the |.
Board, and cascaded through the organisation via a team of
dedicated health and safety professionals, who continually audit
and review on site operations for compliance, as well as liaising
with external verification bodies.

Accident frequency rates remain well below the industry average.

Health and safet} remains the first agenda item at all board
meetings, and is a critical focus for all directors.
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Strategic report (continued)-

Principal risks ahd uncertainties (continued)

Risk description

How it is mitigated

Regulatory, market and economic

The Group operates in markets and segments that are
influenced - by a range of external factors. The
‘resilience and performance of the construction
sector, and the housing market in particular, is at risk
from regulatory change, political change and the
impact of monetary policy and financial system
régulation.

| management team have well developed contingency plans to
‘| execute organisational changes to adapt to such challenges as they

The Group maintains a diversified portfolio of operating activitics,
some of which behave in a counter cyclical manner, and most of
which are aligned to well-funded, blue chip client bases.

The housing market rémains stable, but continues to be
underpinned by favourable political support and, until receutly,
monetary policy. A notable shifi in consumer confidence,
combined with tightening monetary policy looks set to exert
headwinds on this market segment over the coming months. The

may arise.

" | Business process and [T systems

To continue to expand the business, Esh Group
acknowledge that information and associated
technology must be robust and meet business needs.

The group has recently made significant investments in technology
that has has brought together a nuraber of disparate processes, as
well as driving greater use of digital tools 1o make the entire ‘order
to cash® process more integrated. This investment is expected to
provide a sufficient operating platform for the group to achieve its
business objectives. | ’

Business is Curtailed by COVID 19

The after effects of the COVID 19 pandemic
continue to exert operational challenges on the
group. - :

Whilst most, if not all of the impact of COVID lockdowns have
dissipated, the after effects of the pandemic can still be felt in
supply chain challenges, with efforts to mitigate discussed
previously. ’

Although self-isolation is still recommended for employees testing
positive, the declining rate of positive tests, combined with a high
level of vaccination amongst our employees, is limiting the impact
on operations to an almost negligible level.
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Strategic report (continued)
Streamlined Energy and Carbon Repo.rting‘ (SECR) disclosure

Quantification and reporting methodology:
We have followed the 2019 HM Govermment Envuronmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG

" Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2021 UK Government's Conversion Factors for
Company Reporting. '

Operational scopes: .
We have measured our scopes 1, 2 and certain scope 3 emissions.

. . " Current year Previous year
| UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data for the penod 2021 ] ) 2020
1st January to31 December . .
Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) ’ 35,046,764 31,270,898
Energy consumption breakdown (kWh): -
..:;l;_,,,.____ﬁ..«._Mv, e s e e ._7,.t_._.~ i N 59309,5 ,,,,__.‘.__-.5_4.,1.,_]3?%_.._
wel-_ec(;cuy e ‘ - O N 2;1. 4~6_;__..- 55:7:;‘;_
“-wood i _— — - - e R R ; S
- purchased fuel T sa4ma800 | 30685993

SCOPE 1 emissiqns in _rpftrié tonnes CO2e

Gas consumption 53. 68 44.35
Purchased fuel - diesel, }525&5(&1425? T 896509 | go0s13z
-—{V_;o;i b_;r,n,l.n g e e e = h.____-* -O_ DS JE OM S

Total Scope 1 : : 9,018.77 8,049.48

 SCOPE 2 emlsswns in metrlc tonnes  CO2e ) '

Purchased electncnty vm I ~.53_.39¢ T 5530-

Total Scope 2 ' . 53.39 5530

SCOPE 3 emlssxons m metnc tonnes COZe ’ :

Busn'l;;ésvli':a;e] in cmpIO) ee owned \ehlcles' R . . 36v‘2; mf 1 2—7_82A“ B

Total Scope 3 . 36.25 27.82
Total gr?_sws_'gmissions'in metric tonnes CO2e . . 9_12_8 j! I .. G(L. ]

Intensity ration Tonnes per employee . 12.99 10.59

Intensity measurement: - .
The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per employee.

Change to prior year disclosure: _
The Group has disposed of its shares in Deerness Fencing, as such the emissions data relating to that company

have been removed from those above, and the comparative year, to prowde the information for the continuing
activities. '

Growth in emissions in'2021: : :
The growth in the emissions in 2021 reflects the return to normal working following the reduced activities in
2020 due to the periods of lockdown asa result of the Coronavirus.
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Strategic report (continued)

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency:
Objectives and measures as follows:

1.

10.

Reduce the carbon footprint of our workforce -
Employmg a local workforce, video meetings, electric pool cars (site), car sharing, mcreased use of
public transport, reducing city centre travel (train/park and ride) and provndmg home printing facilities.

Reduce the distance travelled by inbound materials

Procuring from local businesses and local dépots, and prioritising suppliers who source local.

Reduce the distance travelled by outbound materials
Identifying local tips and recycling centres'and eliminating outbound material travel by reusing materials
on site. '

Reduce dieset and gas oil fuel consumption . -
Site grid connection reducing diesel generator use hybnd/all electric company car fleet, Euro6 engmes

electric plant machinery, driver training, vehicle monitoring and reduced idling/cab heaters.

" Reduce the carbon footprmt of our office buildings and temporary site accommodation

Increased use of renewable technologies e.g. photovoltaics, efficient lighting, introducing carbon neutral
lenvironmentally friendly site cabins.

‘Reduce water consumption

Therefore reducing CO2 emissions in the treatment of waste water.

Reduce embodied carbon by design

Reuse buildings instead of constructing new ones, specify low-carbon concrete mixes, limit carbon-
intensive materials, reuse materials, use high-recycled content materials, maximize structural efficiency,
use féwer finish niateria!s and minimise waste.

Carbon offsetting .
Compensatc for our emissions by fundmg an equivalent CO2 saving elsewhere, such as tree plantmg

Environmental Investment

- Enhance the natural environment by creating new, and i 1mprovmg existing environments in the areas we

work.

Develop an.environmentally conscious workforce culture
Qualified training, continued professional development, toolbox talks, internal communication,
enhanced signage and workforce incentives.

Renewable electricity generated from owned or controlled sources: : ’
In 2021 we generated 31,682 (2020 3,340) kWh of electricity from the PV panels on Esh House, Bowburn.

Standards held In relation to energy & environmental: )
The Group currently hold the accreditations: 1SO 50001:2018 and I1SO 14001:2015.

AE Radcliffe.

Director
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Corporate Governance

Esh Group Guiding Prmcnples
The Esh Group Board are committed to maintaining and, where appropriate, improving standards of Corporate

Governance. Whilst adherence to the Combined Code on ‘Corporate Governance issued by the Financial
Reporting Council is not obligatory for Esh Group, émbracirig the spirit of the Code ensures the creation and
maintenance of sound business systems and an appropriate level of embedded internal control. The Code requires,
as a minimum, an annual review of all key internal controls; including financial, operatlonal comphance and
risk management systems. : :

The govemance model outlined below has been designed by the Esh Group Board as an adaptation of the .
‘traditional best practice, three lines of defence to risk management.

Esh Group Sector Directors and Management :
Sector Directors and Management own the risks and take responsibility for directly assessing, controlling and

mitigating risks in their areas by way of organisation strength, a strong and well understood chain of comimand

and strict oversight and scrutiny. Théy employ a range of internal controls which are built into the design of the

control environment using either manual processes or system generated control, Wthh forms the first line of
defence in the Esh Group governance model to manage risks.

Esh Group maintains a program of continuous improvement in respect of all its internal control.

The Esh Group Board and Group Policies i .
"The Board consists of both Executive and Non-Executive members and therefore draws on a wnde range of

experience both internally and externally. when considering the establishment of Group Strategy and Policy. Tt
has established the foundations that are the core of Esh Group in terms of its culture, vision and values. The Esh
Group Corporate Values are documented and communicated directly to all employees, workers and busmess
partners. ’

The Board delegate to the Sector Directors and Management, the day to day operation of the businesses within
cléar well-defined authority limits. Where appropriate, business decisions are reached following a structured and
documented review of potential opportumtles and threats. The process is designed to manage or mmgate any
residual risk exposure identified.

However, the Board retains a schedule of matters reserved for its approval only, namely; the company strategy
and review of performance, the appointment of key executives, approval of accounts, approval of the business
plan, budget and fi nancial pollmes consideration of potential major projects, acquisitions or disposals of business
sectors, opportunities in new markets, health and safety, the environment, business ethlcs, risk management,
human rights and other social issues.

The Board set Grou;; Policies and formal delegations of authority as appropriate to all companies, subsidiaries .
and associations. The Group Policies provided by the Board, require that all procedures and systems of control
must be buiit and operated in line with any mandatory requirements and these therefore formulate a second line -
of defence in the Esh Group governance model.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

The Esh Group Board and Group Policies (continued)
Internal and independent of operational management, are a range of Group functional teams. These include teams

in Health, Safety Quality and Environment, Commetcial, HR, [T and Internal Audit. All comphance teams report
directly to the Board and have access to expert or specialist resources from professional advisors as required. The
Compliance team will assess the adherence to Group Policies and Procedures. The outcome of compliance
assessments will be reported to the Board and an appropriate action plan devised with management, who are -
supported through to implementation. These corpliance teams bring up the third line of defence in the Esh Group
govemance model. : ' -

-Deviation from any aspect of a Group Policy requxres the express consent of the Chief Executive Officer in '
writing in advance.

All Group Policies are also publicly available in full detail on our website and intranet, but specific comment is
made on the following core areas: '

Employment Policies and Procedures .
For all our employees, across all companies in the Group, there is a comprehenswe Employee Handbook This

Handbook explains the required and mandatory standards of employee and manager behaviour and incorporates
specifically: the Esh Group Values, Employee Code of Conduct and aspects of Health, Safety and Wellbeing.

It is also required that all workers for Esh Group, irrespective of engagement status, that they understand and
comply with the above standards where they are appropriate for their role.

The Group supplements the Employee Handbook - with other related policies or statements covering Slavery &
Human Trafficking, Gender’ Pay and Equal ity & Dwersnty

Ethical Governance Approach

Through the Ethical Govemance Approach the hlghest standards of integrity and accountability are put into

practice by the Board. These standards are expected to be adopted and adhered to by all company directors,"
employees and third parties, mcludmg sub-contractors and their workers, and are evident throughout all relevant

Group Policies. ’

A range of whistle blowing, an;i-corr\'xption and bribery policies and procedures support a culture of open, honest
and fair dealing. These policies and procedures are designed to minimise the risks of fraud or corruption
occurring, as well as to maximise the rate of detection and subsequent corrective action. Any employee, worker
or member of the public is encouraged to speak out if théy see any wrong-doing or area of concern and to enable
. this, the Group provides a range of reporting routes to facilitate this in a safe, appropriate and confidential manner.

" Health and Safety Policy and Procedures
It is Esh Group Policy that its operations shall be conducted in such a way as to ensure, so far as is reasonably

practicable, the health, safety and welfare of all its employees, subcontractors and site visitors and that its

activities will not adversely affect the health and safety of others i.e. members of the public, children and any

other interested parties. We believe there is no conflict between our requirement to keep our workforce and
~ members of the public safe and our long-term financial success.

@
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Health and Safety Policy and .Pmcedures (cgntim'zed) o

The Group recognises the importance of health and safety in all its undertakings. Jt relies upon the active
participation of management and workforce including sub-contractors to maintain safe working practices and
procedures in order to fulfil its legal obligations under the Health & Safety at Work Act 1974 and all other
relevant health and safety legislation. In addition to fulfilling its legal obligations, the aim of the Group is to
achieve best health and safety practice in all that it does primarily through adherence to ESH SAFE — Everyone
Safely Home our bespoke brand and commitment. i

e
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" Directors and advisors

Michael Hogan, Non-Executive Chairman | Tenure: S0 years .

Michael was appointed as Group Chairman on the retirement of Austin Donohoe, Michael is a Founder Director.
He set up a fencing contracting business in 1970 and later formed Dunelm Homes and Deemess Fencing. In
1999, he formed Dunelm Castle Homes, a joint venture with Lumsden & Carroll. The relationship with Lumsden
& Carroll was formalised later that year with the fonnatxon of Esh Holdmgs, and \lhchael was previously Group
" Chairman until 2004. . :

Andy Radcliffe | Group Chief Executive Officer | Tenure: 12-years )
. Andrew (Andy) Radcliffe joined Esh Group in 2010 from Moores Furniture Group Limited in Wctherby, where

he was Group Finance Director. Andy has extensive experience in several industry sectors and was -awarded
Yorkshire Finance Director of the Year in 2009. In May 2017, Andy assumed the role of Group Chief Executive
Officer.

-Stephen Wilkie | Execuhve Director |Tenure 34-years
Stephen joined Lumsden and Carroll in 1987 as a trainee Engineer and was appointed Managmg Director in

2008. In 2016 he was additionally appomted Executive Director of Esh Group’s construction business. Stephen
was a board member of CECA for 11 years and is also a Director of Esh Constructions utility JV company, Esh-
Stantec, Stephen now oversees Esh- Civils across the North East and Yorkshire and Deerness Fencing and
Landscaping. ' ‘
Phil Brown | Executive Director | Tenure: 16-years !

Phil is also a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Building with over 20 years experience in the private residential
sector and with extensive experience within both the public and private sector. Phil joined Esh 14 years ago and
is'the Executive ,Director with responsibility for our Privat,e House building business.

Tony Carroll Jnr | Non-Executive Director| Tenure: 29-years
As a family member of Founder Director Tony Carroll Snr, Tony Jnr joined the Board during 2017. Tony isa

full-time employee, having joined the company in 1992, currently enjoying the position of Health & Safety -
Manager.

John Lumsden Jnr | Non-Executive Director | Tenure: 30-years
As a family member of Founder Director John (Jack) Lumsden Shr, John Jnr joined the Board during 2017. John

is a full-time employee, having joined the company in 1991, currently enjoying the position of Construction
Manager. '
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Directors émd'advisors (continued)-

Philip Coates, Non-Executive Director
2017 saw Esh Group welcome Philip Coates as a Non-Executive Dnrector

Philip enjoyed a 31-year career with Barclays in the North East, retiring at 50 to see a world outside of banking,
Since then, he has acted in a financial consultancy role for some local companies and sits on a number of Boards

in the area.

Trading Name
Esh Group is a trading name of Esh Holdings Limited.

Company secretary of Esh Holdings Limited
A Law . (Appointed 31 January 2021)

M Sowerby (Resigned 31 January 2021)

Independent auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Central Square South
Orchard Street
Newcastle upon Tyne

NE1 3AZ

Legal advisors ] .

Muckle LLP . Swinburne Maddison LLP

Time Central . " Venture House _

32 Gallowgate : Aykiey Heads Business Centre
Newcastle upon Tyne . Durham

NE1 8AS "' DHI15TS

Bankers .

Lloyds Bank ple - Nucleus Commercial Finance Limited
4th Floor o Mezzanine Floor, St Albans House
102, Grey Street 57-59 Haymarket

Newecastle upon Tyne London

NE1 6AG | SWIY4QX
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Directors’ report

- The directors present their d\rectors report and audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Principal activities V ) )
The principal activities of the Group during the year were building construction, civil engineering and property
maintenance. The principal activity of the Company is that of holding investments.

Financial instruments i
The Group’s financial instruments comprise of borrowings (principally a bank Ioan), cash, share capital, and

various items that arise directly from operations (such as trade debtors, trade creditors etc). The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise t' inance for the Group s operatlons and to manage interest rate risk.

The main risks arising from the Group's ﬁnancnal instruments are interest rate risk and Ilquldrty risk. The Board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these nsks and they are summarised below. These policies have
remained unchangéd throughout the year. : .

Interest rate risk .

The Group finances its operations through a mixture of retained profits, share capital, and bank borrowings. The
Board, in agreement with their funders, have dgreed that the short- to medium-term outlook for interest rates
negates the need to initiate any hedging instruments. The Group’s finance lease borrowings are at fixed interest
rates.

Liquidity risk -

The group has since 2019, an asset backed loan facility of £9.2m. This allows the group to draw down loan
against the level of debtors which are omstandmg at any time. This allows the busmess to manage its working
capital in an effective and flexible manner.

At 31 December 2021, t'he, Group had cash at bank and in hand of £20.8m, which is expected to be more than
sufficient to fund the working capital needs for the Group.

Credit risk

The Group trades largely with public funded and quasi- publlc -sector organisations. Whilst the Group engages

with private clients, these are credit risk assessed before trading commences and the directors believe that any
credit risk is effectively managed. Exposure to credit risk is therefore believed to be limited.

Paid dividends
£ml dividends were pald in the year (2020 £n|I)

Share capital
There was no movement in the level of share capital in the year. -
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Directors’ report (continued)

Directors :
The directors in office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements were as follows:

A J Carroll Snr.

© PJ) Brown -

M F Hogan -

J G Lumsden Jnr.

A E Radcliffe

M A Sowerby ° (Resigned 31 January 2021)

P G Watson (Resigned 31 May 2022)

ST Wilkie ' - : .

All of the directors beneﬁted from quahfymg third-party mdemmty provisions durmg the year and at the date of
. this report.

Employees

ThepGr)cl)up gives full consideration to applications for employment from people with -disabilities where the
requirements of the job can be adequately fulfi lled. Where existing employees become disabled, it is the Group’s
policy wherever practicable to provide continuing employment under normal terms and conditions and to provide
training, career development and promotion to employees with disabilities wherever appropriate.

During the year, the policy of providing employees with information about the Company has been continued
through internal media methods and holding regular meetings to review the Company’s performance. Employees
participate in the success of the business through the Company’s bonus scheme.

Polmcal contributions
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries made any political donations or mcurred any political expendlture

during the year.

Statement of diréctors’ responsnblhtles
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the f nancial statements in accordance with
. applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law, the
directors have prepared the Group and Company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdon{ Accounting, Standards, cmﬁprising FRS “the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” and applicable law). Under com'pany
law, the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair -
view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company, and of the profit or loss of the Group and Company for
that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; .

o -make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

o state whether applicable UK Accountmg Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and .

o prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Group and the Parent Company will continue in business.

20




Esh Holdings Limited

Directors’ report (continued)

The derCtOl'S are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are suffi cient to show and explain the
Group and Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company, and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. ’

v

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the company’s website. Legislation in the
United Kingdom goveming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other jurisdictions.

Section 172 (1) statement
The Esh Holdings’ board believes that all matters it is responsible for under Section 172 (1) of the Compames

Act 2006 have been considered to an appropriate extent. Each director, acting in good faith, promotes the success
of the company for the benefit of its stakeholders as a whole, and in doing so has regard to relevant matters where
aﬁpropriate. To the extent necessary for an understanding of the development, performance and position of Esh
Holdings® Esh Holdings’, examples of how the board has considered the matters set out in Section 172 (1) are
detailed in the table below. :

Considering likely consequences of any decision in | The group has a strong culture of monthly forecasting and has a 3
the long term . | year strategic plan. The consequences of changes to monthly
forecasts are therefore considered for longer term impact on the 3
year plan and beyond.

Taking the interests of the Esh Holdings® employees | Employee feedback is actively sought through staff surveys, team
into account . meetings and informal communication. The Leadership Team of
the Esh Group take this feedback seriously and have an ongoing
improvement plan for further enhancing employee engagement.

Fostering the company's business relationships with | As outlined in the Corporate Governance section of this report, the
suppliers customers and others, and maintaining a | group maintains and enforces a suite of policies, notably on ethical

reputation for high standards of business conduct behaviour.
The impact of Esh Holdmgs on the commumty and | ‘Constructing Local’ is a key strategic initiative of the Group. as
the environment . outlined in the Strategic report. This places the communities and
" | stakeholders in the geographies that we operate at the heart of all
that we do. .

Acting fairly as between meinbers of the company The Esh Holdings’ board includes representatives of all material
’ . shareholders. There is a Board ethos of openness, transparency and
consensus decision making such that all major decisions require
‘unanimous approval. Minority shareholders are, in the main, also |-
employees of the company and often consulted through other
mediums described above, however, due legal processes are
followed when required by Company Law or the Articles of
Association.

Disclosure of mformatuon to auditors
The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’ report conﬁm\ that, so far as they are each

aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and each director
has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Future developments ) :
The future developments of the entity are disclosed within the Strategic Report. .
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Directors’ report (continued)
Independent auditors
Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the audntors will be deemed to be re-appointed and

PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP will therefore continue.in office.

Signed on behalf of the Board

—_

A E Radcliffe g ' ' ' . ’ » Esh House

Director _ ' h - Bowburn North Industrial Estate
29 September 2022 . . Bowburn
' ' - Durham

DHG6 SPF
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Independent auditors’ report to the
directors of Esh Holdmgs Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statéments

Opinion
" In our opinion, Esh Holdings lelteds group financial statements and company financial statements (the “financial
statements”):

» give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company's affairs as at 31 Decamber 2021 and of the
group's profit and the group’s cash flows for the year then ended;

» have been propedy prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (Umted
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland”, and applicable law); and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companxes Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual report and financial statements (the “Annual
Report®), which comprise: Consolidated and Campany balance sheets as at 31 December 2021; Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, Consolidated statement of changes in equity, Company statement of changes in equity and
the Consolidated statement of cash, flows for the year then ended; the Statement of accounting policies; and the notes
to the fi nanclal statements.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance W|th intemnational Standards on Auditing (UK) ("I1SAs (UK) } and applicable law. -
Our responsibilities under I1SAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufﬁcnent and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. -

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that.are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethlcal Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. .

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and the company's ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial. statements, weé have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concem basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. R

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusron is not a guarantee as to the
group's and the company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsnbllutles of the directors with respect to going concem are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial stalements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other infarmation. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.
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Independent auditors’ report to the
directors of Esh Holdings Limited
(contmued) o .

Reporting on other information (continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is o read the other information and, in doing

s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge

obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency -
or material misstatement,.we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement -
of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. I, based on the work we have performed,

we conclude that there Is 2 material misstatement of this ather information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report based on these responsnbllmes

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors' report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the
UK Companies Act 2006 have been included. .

Based on our work undertaken .in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain
opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic report and Directors” report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic tepon and
Directors' report for the year ended 31 December 2021 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared:
in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understandmg of the group and company and their envlronment obtained in the course of
the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors' report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit_

" Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors' responsibilities, the directors are responsibie for the preparation of
the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine Is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statemems that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financlal statements, the directors are respansible for assessung the group’s and the company S ablmy .
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so. .

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ repont that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered rmaterial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws -
and regulations related to the Companies Act 2006 and tax legislation, and we considered the extent to which non-
compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We evaluated management's incentives and
opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and
determined that the principal risks were related to posting inappropriate journal entries to lncraase the group's profitability .
or reduce any loss. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:
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Independent auditors’ report to the-
directors of Esh Holdings L1m1ted
| (contmued)

Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements {continued)

+ Discussions with management including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws
and regulations and fraud;

¢ Review of board minutes; .

« Review of legal expenditure in the year to identify poienhal non-compliance wnh laws and regulation;

» Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their significant accounting estimates and
forecasts;

+ Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual account combinations.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the
financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
" detecting one resulting from ermor, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
""misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located.on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company'’s directors as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions,
accept.or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose
hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing. -

Other required reportiné

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in'our opinion:

e we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns. adequate for-our audit have not been
.received from branches not visited by us; or - .

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

¢ the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

" We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Jonathan Greenaw)ay (Senior Statutory Auditor).
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Newcastie upon Tyne -

29 September 2022
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" Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2021 '

2020 -
2021 (Restated)
» Note £900 £7000
Turnover )
Group and share of joint ventures : . 277,987 236,801
Less: ‘ ' .
Share of joint ventures’ turnover . ) (23,085) (14,216)
Group turnover 1 254,902 222,585
Cost of sales o @37,731) (211,480)
Gross profit/(loss) , _ i o .11 11,105
Administrative expenses before exceptional items ' - (15,555) (18,094)
" . Exceptional administrative expenses p ‘ 9y . . . (216)
Total administrative expenses (15,654) (18,310)
Share of operating profit in joint ventures ) . ) " 2,360 409
Other operating income - - 2,564
Operating profit/(loss) before exceptional items 3,976 (4,016)
._Operating profit/(loss) after exceptional items 2 3,877 » : (4,232)
(Loss)/profit on sale of fixed assets 117 5
Loss on sale of investments ' . 33 ' (511)
Interést receivable and similar income - s : 15 T
Interest payable and similar expenses 6 (953) : (1,145)
Profit/(loss) before taxation : 3,023 " (5,876)
Add back loss attributable to minority interest : 21 ‘ )
Profit/(loss) before taxation attributable to owners of the : '
parent : 3,044 - (5,380)
Tax on profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the parent - -7 . 283 1,303
" Profit/(Toss) for the financial year attributable to owners of
the parent - . 3,327 . (4,577)

Comparative figures have been restated to correct classification between CoS and Admin Expenseé, with Cost of
Sales decreasing by £5,845,000 and Admin Expenses increasing by £5,845,000. There is therefore no change to
- Operating Profit, and no effect on the Balance Sheet
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' Esh Holdings Limited

Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021

2021 : 2020
Note £000 £000 £000 £'000
Fixed assets ‘
Intangible assets 9 - -
Tangible assets. -10 9,075 9,590
Investment properties 11 387 ° 387
Investments 12
Investments in joint ventures and
participating interests . 551 . 315
Loans to joint ventures and participating R
interests 10,422 8,867 i
) 10,973 9,182
20,435 19,159
Current assets ) ’ ‘ . '
‘Stocks 13 812 3,545
Debtors: amounts fallmg due within
one year .14 49,231 45,759
Cash at bank and in hand 20,750 15.365
. 70,793 64,669
Creditors: amounts falling due within ’ . -
one year 15 (59,371) (54,317)
‘Net current assets 11,422 ' 10,352
Total assets less current liabilities 31,857 29,511
Creditors: amounts falling due after .
more than one year 16 - (960)
Provisions for liabilities 17 - -
Net assets . 31,857 . 28,551
Capital and reserves ‘
Calied up share capital 19 22,256 22,256
Share prémium account 29 29
Employment benefit trust reserve l§ (641) (641)
Retained camings 10,213 6,886
- Total shareholders’ funds 31,857 28,530
Minority interests 20 - Coo21
Capital employed 31,857 . 28,551

The financial statements on pages 26 to 66 were approved by the board of directors on 29 September 2022 and

were signed on its behalf by:

—

A E Radcliffe
Director )
Company registered number: 03724890
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Esh Holdings Limited

-Company balance sheet as at 31 December 2021

2021 ' 2020
. Note £2000 “£°000 £'000 £'000
Fixed assets ) ’ '
Intangible assets -9 _
Tangible assets 10 6,629 6,689
Investment properties 11 387 387
Investments 12 6,441 - 6,274
13,457 13,350
Current assets . . -
Debtors: amounts falling due within : :
one year : 14 24,784 25,938
Cash at bank and in hand 48 790
. 24,832 26,728
Creditors: amounts falling due within )
one year . ) 15 (17,958) (19,235) .
Net current assets 6,874 : 7,493
Total assets less current Jiabilities 20,331 20,843
Creditors: amounts falling due after
more than one year 16 - -
Provisions for liabilities 17 - -
Net assets 20,331 " 20,843
Capital and reserves .
Called up share capital 19 22,256 22,256
Share premium account . ) 29 29
" Employment benefit trust reserve 19 (641) " (641)
Retained earnings/(accumulated loss) .
At | January '(801) 412
Profit/(loss) for the year (512) (1,213) -
Other changes ip retained earnings/ N
(accumulated loss) < R .
At 31 December (1,313) (801)
20,331

Total Shareholders’ Funds

20,843

The financial statements on pages 26 to 66 were apprm./ed by the board of directors on 29 September 2022 and
were signed on its behalf by: : - , .

A E Radcliffe -
Director .

Company registered number: 03724890
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Esh Holdings Limited-

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Total

Called Share  Employment
" upshare’  premium benefittrust  Retained  shareholders’
capital account reserve earnings funds
£000 - £000 - £000 £'000 £'000
Balance at | January 2020 22,256 29 (641) 11,463 . 33,107
Loss for the financial year - - - (4,577) - (4,577)-
Other comprehensive income - - - - -
Total comprehensive expense
for the year - - - (4,577)° " (4,577)
Share issuance - - - - . -
Transfer from minority interest - - - - -
Dividend on shares’ - - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2020 - 22,256 29 (641) 6,886 ' 28,530
Préﬁt/(loss) for the financial ' ‘
year - - - - 3,327 3,327
. Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive expense . ) .
for the year - - - 3,327 . 3,327
Share issuance - - - - : -
Transfer from minority interest - - - - -
Dividend on shares - ; . . .
Balance at 31 December 2021 22,256 29 (641) 10,213 - . 31,857

29 -




Esh Holdings Limited

Company statement of changes in gquity-
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Share

Employment

Calted up - Retained Total
share premium benefit trust  earnings  sharecholders’
capital account - reserve funds
£°000 _£°000 £000 £000 £°000
Balance at 1 January 2020 22,256 29. (641) 412, 22,056
Profit for the financial year ' - - (1,21 35 (1,213)
Other comprehensive income - - - Cs .
Total comprehensive income .
~ for the year - . - - (1,213) (1,213)
Share issuance h ' - . - . C
Dividend on shares ) - - S - .
Balance at 31 December 2020 - 22,256 29 ‘ (641) (861) 20,843
Loss for the financial yearl - - - (512)  (512)
Other comprehensive income . - - - - X
Total comprehensive income o
for the year : o - - - (512) (512) -
Share issuance . - - - - L
Dividend on shares - - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2021 122,256 29 (641) - ' (1,313) 20,331
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Esh Holdings Limited

AConsolidated'statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Note £000 £000
Cash generated from operating activities 21 6,605 4,743
Taxation received ' ) _ (60) 665
Net cash generated from operating activities - . 6,545 5,408
Cash flow from investing activities :
Purchase of tangible assets (547) (125)
Purchase of intangible assets - -
Proceeds from disposals of tangible assets 252 74
. Sale/(purchase) of investment property: - -
Sale of EBT shares ' - -
Interest received . 5
Dividends received 1,329 200
. Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing activities 1,049 154
Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of obligations under finance Teases . -
Repayment of bank borrowings/debt capitalisation (1,450) (4.642)
‘Dividends paid C - -
Movement in minority Interests - -
Interest paid (759) (815)
Share issuance ) - -
Net cash used in financing activities (2,209) (5,457)
Net decrease in cash at bank and in hand 5,385 105
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 15,365 15,260
15,365

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

20,750
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‘Esh Holdings Limited. -

Statement of accounting policies

General information . _

Esh Holdings Limited (the “Company ") is a private company limited by shares and is incorporated in England
and -Wales. The address of its registered off’ ce i3 Esh House, Bowburn North Industrial Estate, Bowburn,
Durham, DH6 5PF.

The principal activities of the Group during the year were building construction, civil engineering and property
maintenance. The principal activity of the Company is that of holding investments.

Statement of compliance_
The Group and individual financial statements of Esh Holdings Limited have been prepared in compliance wnth

the applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards including Financial Reporting Standard 102, ““The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland’* (*“FRS 102”") and
the Companies Act 2006. ‘

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated and separate financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the yeaxs presented, unless )
otherwise stated. .

Basis of preparation
These consolidated and separate financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis, in accordance with

applicable UK Accounting Standards, under the historical cost convention as modified by recognition of
investment properties and some financial asset and financial liabilities at fair value.

" The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates, It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group and Company aécounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degfee of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in policy “Critical judgements and estimates in applying the
accounting policies™ within this note. ' ‘

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in section 408 of the Companies Act from disclosing its
individual statement of comprehensive income. ' }

Going concern
Further information on the group’s business actlvmes together with factors likely to affect its future development

are set out in the Chairman’s Report, the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report.
The Group’s continuing operations achieved EBITDA of £4.8m and closing net assets were £31.9m.

The group trades with a large number of customers and suppliers across a number of sectors and expects to meet
day to day. working capital requirements through existing considerable cash reserves, which totalled £20.8m
(2020: £15.4m).The Group also has access to a £9.2m lodn facility which is secured against assets within the
business and which can be drawn down against the outstanding client appiications and sales invoices of Esh
.Construction Limited and Deerness Fencing & Landscaping Limited.

After making detailed enquiﬁes and taking into account the factors discussed above, the directors of the Parent
Company have a reasonable expectation that both the Parent Company and Group have adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and accordingly continue to prepare the Parent '
Company and Group financial statements on a going concern basus
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Esh Holdings Limited

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements consolidate the fmanmal statements of the company and each of its subsidiary

undertakings together with theé Group’s share of the results of j Jomt venture undertakings and associates made up
to 31 December.

)

(i)

(iti)

Subsidiaries _
A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group. Contro! is the power to govern the financial and

" operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Where the Group owns less than

50% of the voting powers of an entity but controls the entity by virtue of an agreement with other investors
which give it control of the financial and operating policies of the entity it accounts for that entity as a
subsidiary.

Investments in subsidiary undertaking§ are stated at-cost, including those costs associated with the
acquisitions, less provision for any impairment in value. Where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an investment may not be recoverable, an impairment review is
performed.. An impairment write down is recognised to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds the higher of the fair value less cost to setl and value in use.

Where a subsidiary has different accounting policies to the Group, adjustments are made to those
subsidiary financial statements to apply the Group’s accounting policies when preparing the consolidated
financial statements.

Where control of a subsidiary is lost, the gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The cumulative amounts of any exchange differences on translation, recognised

in equity, are not included in the gain or loss on disposal and are transferred to retained earnings. The

gain or loss also includes amounts included in the retained earnings that are required to be reclassified to
profit or loss but excludes those amounts that are not required to be reclassified.

" Where control of a subsidfary is achieved in stages, the initial acquisitioh that gave the Group control is

accounted for as a business combination. Thereafter where the Group increases its controlling interest in

the subsidiary the transaction-is treated as a transaction between equity holders. Any difference between

the fair value of the consideration paid and the carrying amount of the non-controlling interest acquired
is recognised directly in equity. No changes are made to the carrying value of assets, liabilities or
provisions for contingent liabilities. : )

Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements can take the form of jointly controlled operations, jointly controlled
assets, or jointly controlled entities. The classification depends on the contractual rights and obligations
of each investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint arrangement. Esh Holdings Limited has joint
venture classified as jointly controlled entities. ‘

Interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for using the equity method (mentloned below) after
1mt|ally being recogmsed at cost in the consolidated balance sheet.

Associates

An associate is an entity, being neithera subs:dlary nor a joint venture, in which the Group holds a long-
term interest and where the Group has significant influence. The Group considers fhat it has significant
influence where it has the power to participate in the financial and operating decisions of the associate.
The results of associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting (mentioned below).
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‘Esh Holdings Limited

Statement of accounting poiicies (continuéd)

Equity method of accountmg
“Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initiaily recogmsed at cost (mcludmg transaction

costs) and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in the profit or loss. Dividends received or receivable from joint ventures are recognised as a reduction
in the carrying amount of the investment. ) '

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
* including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transactxon provides evidence
of an lmpanrmem of the asset transferred. -

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for lmpamnent in accordance with the pohcy
“Impairment of non-financial assets” mentioned w1thm this note.

Any subsidiary undertakings or associates sold or acquired during the year are included up to, or from, the dates
- .of change of control or change of significant influence respectively.

Where the Group has established employee benefit trusts (‘EBT") and/or is the sponsoring entity, notwithstanding
the legal duties of the trustees, the Group considers that it has ‘de facto’ control of such entities. Such
arrangements are accounted for as assets and liabilities of the sponsoring company and included in the
consolidated financial statements as appropriate. The Company’s equity instruments held by the EBT are
accounted for as if they were the Company’s own equity and are treated as treasury shares. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive income on the purchase, sale or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity held by the EBT or the Group. : .

All intra-Group transactions, "balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Adjustments are
made to eliminate the profit or loss arising on transacnons wnth associates to the extent of the Group s interest in
the entity.

Exemptions. for qualifying entities under FRS 102
FRS 102 allows a qualifying entity certain disclosure exemptions, if certain conditions, have been complied with,

including notification of and no objection to. the use of exemptions by the Company s shareholders. A qualifying
entity is defined as a member of a group that prepares publicly avallable financial statements, which gwe atrue
and fair view, in which that member is consolidated.

As a qualifying en'tity the Company may take advantage of the following exemptions;

(i), . from the requirement to prepare a statement of cash ﬂows as required by paragraph 3.17(d) of FRS

102; .
(ii) from the requirement to present certain f' nancial instrument disclosures, as requxred by sectlons I

and 12 of FRS 102;
(iii) from the requirement to present a reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the
; beginning and end of the year as required by paragraph 4.12(a)(iv) of FRS 102; and )
(iv) from the requirement to disclose the key management personnel compensation'in total as required
"by paragraph 33.7 of FRS 102.
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Esh Holdings Limited

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Foreign Currency

(i) Functional and presentation currem:v
The Group financial statements are presented in pound sterling and rounded to thousands

The Company’s functional and presentation currency is the pound sterling.

(ii) - Transaettons and balances - ' ' -
Forelgn currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions.

Ateach year end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. Non-monetary items
.measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction and non- )
monetary items measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate when fair value was determined.

Foreign-exchange gains and losses resulting from the settiement of transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in the- statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within ‘interest (expense)/ income”. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented within ‘Other operating (losses)/gains’..

(iiit - Translation .

. The trading results of Group undertakings are translated into sterling at the average exchange rates for the
year. The assets and liabilities of overseas undertakings, including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the year end. Exchange adjustments
arising from the retranslation of opening net invéstments and from the translation of the profits or losses
at average rates are recognised i in ‘Other comprehenswe income’ and allocated to minority mteres! as
appropriate.

Turnover .
Turnover is measured at the fair value of the consideration recewed or receivable and represents the amount

receivable for goods supplied or services rendered, net of returns, discounts, mtra-group sales and rebates allowed
by the Group and value added taxes. :

Where the consideration receivable in cash’or cash equivalents is deferred, and the arrangement constitutes a
financing transaction, the fair value of the consideration is measured as the present value of all future receipts
using the imputed-rate of interest.

The Group recognises turnover when (a) the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer; (b) the Group retains no continuing involvement or control over the goods; (c) the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably; (d) it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and (e) when the
specific criteria relating to each of the Group’s sales channels have been met, as described below.

(a)  Long-short term contracts’
Turnover on long term contracts is recorded at cost appropriate to the stage of completion plus attributable
profits, less amounts recognised in previous years, as set out in the accounting policy for long term
contracts. Turnover on short term contracts is recognised when the contract is completed.
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. Esh Holdiﬁgs Limited

Statement'of accounting policies (continued)
Turnover (continuedj

(b) Property sales
Turnover on property sales is recognised upon legal completion. of legal title to the customer.
(c)  Supply of service '
Turnover from the supply of services represents the value of services provided under contracts to the
extent that there is a right to consideration and is recorded at the value of the consideration due. Where a
contract has only been partially completed at the reporting date turnover represents the value of the service
provided to date based on a proportion of the total contract value. Tumover from services is recogmsed
" when the service has been performed.

Government grants ' -
Government grants are recognised based on the accrual model and are measured at the fair value of the asset
received or receivable. Grants relating to assets are recognised over the expected useful life of (he asset. Where
partofa grant relating to an asset is deferred itis recogmsed as deferred income.

Employee benefits
The Group provides a range of benefits to employees, including holiday arrangements and defined contribution

pension plans.

(i) Short term benef its .
Short term benefits, including holiday pay and other similar non-monetary benefits, are recogmsed as an
‘expense in the year in which the service is received. ‘

(ii)  Defined contribution pension plans -
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. Once the contributions have -been paid the Group has no further payment obligations. The
“assets of the funds are held separately from those of the Company in independently administered funds.
The contributions are recognised as an expense when they are due. Amounts not pzud are shown in
accruals in the balance sheet.

The Group also contributes to a self-administered pension scheme on behalf of certain directors. This is a money
purchase scheme and contributions are charged to the statement of comprehensive income in accordance with -
the rules of the scheme.

- Taxation -
Taxation expénse for the year comprises current and deferred tax recognised in the reporting year. Tax is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case tax is also recoomsed in other comprehenswe
income or directly in equity respectively.

Current or deferred taxation assets and'liabilities are not discounted.-

(i)  Current tax .
Current tax is the amount of i income tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year or prior years.
- Tax is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
year end. .
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Esh Holdingé Limited

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

(i)  Deferredtax :
Deferred tax arises from timing dlfferenoes that are differences between taxable profits and total
comprehensive income as stated in the financial statements. These timing differences arise from the
inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments in years different from those in which they are
recognised in financial statements. : '

Deferred tax is recognised on all timing differences at the réporting daté. Unrelieved tax losses and other
deferred tax assets are only recognised when it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal -
-of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

Deferred tax is measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
year end and that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference.

Business combinations-and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method.

The cost of a business combination is the fair value of the consideration given, liabilities incurred or assumed.
and of equity instruments issued plus the costs directly attributable to the business combination. Where control
is achieved in stages the cost is the consideration at the date of each transaction.

Contingent consideration is initially recognised at estimated amount where the consideration is probable and can
be measured reliably. Where (i) the contingent consideration is not considered probable or cannot be reliably
measured but subsequently becomes probable and measurable or (ii). contingent consideration previously
measured is adjusted, the amounts are recognised as an adjustmeni to the cost of the business combination.

On acquisition of a business, fair values are attributed to the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
unless the fair value cannot be measured reliably, in which case the value is incorporated in goodwill. Where the
. fair value of contingent liabilities cannot be reliably measured they are disclosed on the same basis as other
contlngent liabilities.

Goodwill recognised represents the excess of the fair value and directly attributable costs of the purchase .
consideration over the fair values to the Group s interest in the identifiable net assets, liabilities and commgent
liabilities acquired. :

On acqulsmon goodwill is allocated to cash-generatmg units (¢ CGU’s ) that are expected to benefit from the
combination. :

Goodwill is amortised over its expected useful life which is 10 years, the period over which the directors consider
the Group will derive continuing economic benefit. Goodwill is assessed for impairment when there are indicators
‘of impairment and any impairment is charged to the income statement. Reversals of impairment are recognised
when the reasons for the impairment no longer apply.




Esh Holdings Limited

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

~

Business combinations and goodwill (continued) .

Negative  goodwill arises where combination fair value of the group’s interest in the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired exceeds the cost of the business. The Group, after consideration of the assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired and the cost of the combination, recognises negative goodwill on the
balance sheet and releases this to profit and loss, up to the fair value of non-monetary assets acquired, over the
years in which the non-monetary assets are recovered, approximately five years and any excess over the fair
value of non-monetary assets in the statement of comprehensive income over the year expected to benefit.

. Investments ‘ )
In the Company’s- ﬁnancnal statements, investments in subsidiary undertakings, associates and joint ventures is -

held at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Tangible assets and depreciation )
Tangible assets are stated at cost (or deemed cost) less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses. Cost includes the original purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its-
working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less the estimated residual value of tangible fixed assets by equal
instalments over their estimated useful economic lives as follows:

Freehold buildings - 50 years

Leasehold properties - -40 years
Plant and machinery - $ years

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed. and adjusted, if appropriéte, at the end of each reporting
year. The effect of any change is accounted for prospectively.

Repairs, maintenance and minor inspection costs are expensed as incurred.

" Tangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected. On disposal, the
dlfference between the net dlsposal proceeds and the carrymg amount is recognised in profit or loss and mcluded
in ‘Profit on sale of fixed assets’. :

Jovestment properties

Tnvestment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, including property
under construction for such purposes, is measured initially at its cost, including transaction costs. Subsequentto
initial recognition, investment properties for which fair value can be measured reliably without undue cost or
.effort on an ongoing basis are measured at fair value armually with any change recognised in the profit or loss. .
Investment properties are revalued annually by independent professionally qualified valuers and in the
intervening years by the directors with the assistance of independent professional advice as required. Details
related to fair value determination of investment properties is mentioned in note 11.

No depreciation is provided in respect of investment properties. The Companies Act 2006 requires all properties
to be depreciated. However, this requirement conflicts with the generally accepted accounting principle set out -
in Section 16 of FRS 102. The directors consider that, as these properties are not held for consumption, but for
their investment potential, to depreciate them would not give a true and fair view and that it is necessary to adopt
Section 16 of FRS 102 in order to give a true and fair view. ‘
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Esh Holdings Limited .

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

[nvestment propemes (continued)
An investment property is derecognised upon dxsposal or when the investment property is permanently w1thdrawn

from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising. on.
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the year in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment of non-financial assets :
At each reporting date non-financial assets not carried at fair value are assessed to determine whether there is an

indication that the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit) may be impaired. If there is such an indication the
recoverable amount of the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit) is compared to the carrying amount of the asset
(or asset’s cash generating unit).

" The recoverable amount of-the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit) is the higher of the fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. Value in use is defined as the present value of the future cash flows before interest and tax
obtainable as a result of the asset’s (or asset’s cash generating unit) continued use. These cash flows are
discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that represents the current market risk- free rate and the risks inherent in
the asset.

If the recoverable amount of the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit) is estimated to be lower than the carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impaimment loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, unless the asset has been revalued when the amount is
" recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of any previously recognised revaluation. Thereafier any
-excess is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

If an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the cairying amount of the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the revised' carrying
amount does not exceed the camying amount that would have been determined .(net of depreciation’ or
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Goodwill is allocated on acquisition to the cash generating unit exbected to benefit from the synergies of the
. combination. Goodwill is included in the carrying value of cash generating uaits for impairment testing. *

Leases
Atinception the Group assesses agreements that transfer the right to use assets. The assessment considers whether

the arrangemem is, or contains, a lease based on'the substance of the arrangement.

) Finance lease
: Leases of assets that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are classified
as finance leases. ' -

‘Finance ieases are capitalised at commencement of the lease as assets at the fair value of the leased asset
or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments calculated using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. Where the implicit rate cannot be determined the Group’s incremental borrowing rate is used.
Incremental direct costs, incurred in negotlatmg and arranging the lease, are included in the cost of the
asset.

Assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful life of the asset. Assets
are assessed for impairment at each reporting date.
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Esh Holdings Limited

“Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued

(-

{ii)

(iif)

Sto;cks

Finance lease (continued)

~ The capital element of lease obligations is recorded as a hablhty on mcepnon of the arrangement. Lease

payments are apportioned between capital repayment and finance charge, using the effective interest rate
method, to produce a constant rate of charge on the balance of the capital repayments outstanding.

Operating lease

Leases that do not transfer all the nsks and rewards of ownership are classified as operatmg leases
Paymeénts under operating leases are charged to the consolidated staxement of comprehensnve income on
a stralght-lme basis over the period of the lease.

-Lease incentives

Incentives received to enter into an operating lease are crechted to the statement of income and retained
earnings, to reduce the lease expense, on a straxght line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group and Company have taken advantage of the exemption in respect of lease incentives on leases
in existence on the date of transition to FRS 102 (1 January 2014) and continues to credit such lease
incentives to the statement of com prehen51 vé income over the period to the first review date on which the
rent is adjusted to market rates.

Hausebuzldmg slocks andwork in progress

Stocks and work in progress are stated at the lower of cost and estimated sellmg price less cost fo complete and
sell. Work in progress comprises direct materials, labour costs, site overheads, associated professional charges
and other attributable overheads.

Investments in land without the benefit of 2 planning consent are initially included at cost. Regular reviews are
carried out to identify any impairment in the value of the land with consideration to the existing use value of the
land, likelihood of achieving a planmng consent, and the value thereof: Provision is made to reflect any
.irrecoverable amounts.

" Other stocks .
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less cost to complete and sell. In determining
the cost of raw materials, consumables and goods purchased for resale, the welghted average purchase price is

used.

At the end of each reporting period stacks are assessed for impairment. If an item of stock is impaired, the
identified stock is reduced to its selling price less costs to complete and sell and an impaiiment charge is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Where a-reversal of the impairment is
required the impairment charge is reversed, up to the original impairment loss and is recognlsed as a credit in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equlvalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposns held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid

investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts, when
apphcable are shown within borrowmgs in current liabilities.
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Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Provisions and contingencies

(i) ‘ Prows;ans
’ Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
. of the obligation can be estlmated reliably.

¢

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
might be small.

.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to seftle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provnslon due to passage of time is recognised as
a finance cost.

(i)  Contingencies

- Contingent liabilities are not récognised, except those acquired in a business combination. Contingent
liabilities arise as a result of past events when (i) it is not probable that there will be an outflow of
resources or that the amount cannot be reliably measured at the repdrting date or (ii) when the existence
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future events not wholly within the
Group’s control. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements unless the probability of
an outflow of resources is remote. :

Contmgent assets are not recognised. Contmgem assets are dlsclosed in the financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits i is probable.

Long term contracts

The amount of profit attributable to the stage of completion of a long-term contract 15 recognised when- the
outcome of the contract can be foreseen with. reasonable certainty. Turnover for such contracts is stated at cost
appropriate to their stage of compietion plus attributable profits, less amounts recognised in previous years.
Tumover includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contracted work, to the extent
that it is probable that they will result in revenue and can be measured reliably. The stage of completion of a
contract is assessed by reference to completion of a physical proportion of the contract work. Provision is made
for any losses as soon as they are foreseen.

Contract work in progress is stated at costs incurred, less those transferred to the statement of comprehensive
income, after deducting foreseeable losses and payments on account not matched with turnover.

Amounts recoverable on contracts are included in debtors and represent tunover recognised in excess of .

payments on account.
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Statement of acéounting policies (continued)

Financ

ial instruments

Classification of financial instruments issued by the company
Financial instruments issued by the company are treated as equity (i.e. forming part of shareholders’ funds) only

tothee

(a)

(b)

xtent that they meet the followmg two conditions:

they include no contractua] obllgatlons upon the company to deliver cash or other financial assets or to
exchange financial assets or financial hablht\es with another party under conditions that are potentially
unfavourable to the company; and . :

where the instrument will or may be settled in the company’s own equity instruments, it is either a non-
derivative that includes no obligation to deliver a variable nurober of the company’s own equity
instruments or is a derivative that will be settled by the company’s exchanging a fixed amount of cash
or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

To the extent that this definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where the
instrument so classified takes the legal form of the company’s own shares, the amounts presented in these
financial statements for called up share capital and share premium account exclude amounts in relation to those

shares.

Finance payments associated ‘with financial liabilities are dealt with as part of interest payable and similar
charges. Finance payments associated with financial instruments that are classified as part of shareholders’ funds
(see dividends policy), are dealt with as appropriations in the reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds.

Ul

Financial assets

Basic ﬁnancnal assets, mcludmg trade and other recelvables and cash and bank balances are initially
recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the -
transaction is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.
Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effectlve interest method.

At the end of each reporting period financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for objéctiVe
evidence of impairment. If an asset is impaired the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective

interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

(i)

If there is decrease in the impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does not
exceed what the carrying amount would have been,had the impairment not previously been recognised.
The impairment reversal is recogniséd in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities . . :
Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other payables and loans from fellow group companies, are
initially recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where
the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of
interest.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability 'is extinguished, that is when the contractual
obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires. -
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Esh Holdings Limited.

Statement of ac"coimting policies (continued)

Related party transactions
The Group has taken advantage of the exemption, as provided by pa.ragraph 33.1A of FRS 102 and does not

disclose transactions with members of the same group that are wholly owned. The Group discloses transactions
with related parﬁes which are not wholly owned with the same Group.

Dividends on shares presented within shareholders’ funds :
Dividends are only recognised as a liability to the extent that they are declared prior to the year end Unpald

dividends that do not meet these criteria are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Critical accounting judgements and key source of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements estimates and assumptions

that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue
and expenses. Actual results may dlffer from these estimates. :

Estimates and underlying assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to
accounting estimates. are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected. : '

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below:

(i) Turnover recognition )
The Group's turnover recognition policies, which are set out above, are central to the way the Group
" values the work it has carried out in each financial year and have been consistently applied. These policies
require forecasts to be made of the outcomes of long-term construction and service contracts, which
require assessments and judgements to be made on changes in work scopes, contract programmes and
maintenance liabilities. o

(ii)  Long term contracts
The amount of profit attributable to the stage of completion of a long-term contract is recognised when
the outcome of the contract can be foreseen with reasonable certainty. Turnover for such contracts is
stated at cost appropriate to their stage of completion plus attributable profits, less amounts recognised in
. previous years. Tumnover includes the initial amount ‘agreed in the contract plus any variations in
contracted work, to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and can be measured:
reliably. The stage of completion of a contract is assessed by reference to completion of a physical
- proportion of the contract work. Provision js made for any losses as soon as they are foreseen.

(iii)  laluation investments in Iand
Investments in land without the benefi t of a planning consent are initially included at cost. Regular
reviews are carried out to identify any impairment in the value of the land w1th consideration to the
existing use value of the land, likelihood of achieving a planning consent, and the value thereof. Provision
is made to reflect any irrecoverable amounts.

Prior year restatement

Comparative figures have been restated to correct classification between CoS and Admin Expenses, with Cost of
Sales decreasing by £5,845,000 and Admin Expenses i mcreasmg by £5,845,000. There is therefore no change to
Operating Profit, and no effect on the Balance Sheet
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Esh Hvoldings» Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

1  Group turnover

All turnover arises in the United Kingdom from the following activities:

99

2021 2020
_£°000 £000
~ Construction " 181,642 151,285
Housing and land 17,066 " 10,458
Property services 55,747 " 60,766
Business support ‘ 447 76
Group turnover 254,902 » 22i,585
2 Operating profit/(loss) after exceptional items ,
2021 2020
. £7000 £000
Operating profit/(loss) is stated after charging: _
" Depreciation and other amounts written off tangible fixed assets:
Owned ' ' 927 1,175
Leased - -
Amortisation of goodwill - R
. Hire of assets = . - - 8,758 8,425
Exceptional items: ‘ '
Restructuring costs 216

" Exceptional items reflect the one-off impact to the business during the year including £99,000 (2020: £216,000)

.- of restructuring costs.

Auditors’ remuneration .

2021 2020

. £000 £000

, Audit of the consolidated financial statements 30 45
Amounts receivable by auditors and their associates in respect of: .

Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries 150 122

Taxation compliance services ’ - 80 55

Other tax advisory services - 4

44




N

Esh Holdings Limited .

Notes to the financial statemént_s _'
for the year ended 31 December 2(_)21 (continued)

-3 Directors> emoluments

Group. . - .
2021 2020
£000 £°000
Directors’ emoluments - . ’ 1,038 . 740
Company contributions to m\oney purchase pension schemes .- 59 L 45

The ‘aggregate emoluments of the highest paid director were £276,558 (2020: £251,695), and company pension
contributions of £11,931 (2020: £10,877) were made to a money purchase scheme on his behalf. The above-
disclosure shows remuneration directors have received for their services to the group. '

Number of directors

‘ 2021 2020
Retirement benefits are accruing to the following number of,
" directors under: :
Money purchase schemes . . ’ v 5 - 5

(Al of the Company’s directors benefitted from qualifying third-party indemnity provisions.

v

4  Staff numbers and costs

Group : . : . :
The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group (including directors) during the year, analysed-
by category, was as follows: . 4 ’

1

Numbgr of employees

. 2021 . 2020

Production staff 277 : - 314

Administrative staff - - : . 488 522

' 765 - 837

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were ‘as follows:

B 2021 2020

. v . £000 ~ £000

Wages and salaries 33,000 35,504

Social security costs o . 3432 3,632

Other pension costs (note 24) - . . 1,358 ] 1,422
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme claims t Ce (2,564)

' 37,792 37,994
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Included in staff costs are redundancy pdyments of £99,000 (2020: £216,220).

Notes to the financial statements - 4
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (contmued)

‘ 4 Staff numbers and costs (contmued)

Company’ :
The monthly average number of persons employed by the Company (including directors) during the year,

- analysed by category, was as follows:”

Number of employees

. : 2021 . 2020
Production staff (weekly paid) - . ] ) . - .
Administrative staff (monthly paid) A .58 76

’ 58 76 .
The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:
. o 2021 2020
~ £000 . £000
_ Wages and salaries ' o C 2,856 3.399
Social security costs . L 311 o 338
Other pension costs {note 24) . . . 146 188
3,313 3,925
Included in staff costs are redundancy payments of £nil (2002: £145,000). -
5 Interest receivable and similar income
2021 2020
A . £2000 £000°
Bank interest ) A . 15 7
6. Interest payable and similar expenses
2021 . 2020
) £°000 £°000 -
On bank loans and overdrafts » 4 953 1,i45
Finance charges payable in respect of fmance leases and hlre '
purchase contracts . - -

953 . - 1,145




Esh Holdings Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

7  Tax on loss attributable to owners of the parent

(@)  Tax credit included in profit or Joss

2020 .

2021
£000 £°000
UK corporation tax
Current tax on income for the year : - (18)
Adjustments in respect of prior years . . (295) 42)
, ' ' 295) (60)
Share of joint ventures® current tax _— 569 9
Total current tax ' © 274 (5D
Deferred tax (see note 17) o
Origination/reversal of timing differences ' . T (659) o (1L113)
‘Adjustments in i‘espect of prior years S : . (102) ' (139) '
" Total deferred tax o v . (557) (1,252)
Tax on profit/(loss) - ‘ : ' ' (283) (1,303)

(b) Reconciliation of tax credit’

Factors affecting the tax credit for the current year

The tax charge for the year is lower (2020: lower) than the standard rate of corporatlon tax in the UK of'19%

{2020: 19%). The differences are explained below:

. 2021 2020
Total tax reconciliation £000 £000
Profit/(loss) before taxation . . 3,044 (5,880)
Current tax at 19% (2020: 19%) . ‘ 579 . (1,117
‘Effects of: e
Tax losses )
Gains/rollover relief , - -
Income not taxable v ‘ S . ) - -
Tax rate changes . - ‘ o (591) (154)
- Group relief surrendered/claimed ) ; 207y 16
Deferred tax not p;'ovided . - -
Transfer of trade : ' o - -
Expenses not deductable for tax purposes ) 208 133
Adjustments in respect.of prior years ' T oen) (181) °
Total tax credit for the year (see above) 283

(1,303)
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Esh Holdings Limited

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

7 Tax-on loss attributable to owners of the parent (continued)

Tax rate changes

In the Spring Budget 2021, the Government announced that from 1 April 2023 the corporation tax rate will
increase to 25%. The proposal to increase the rate to 25% has been enacted at the balance sheet date, its effects

are included in these financial statements. -
8 Dividends

The aggregate amount of dividends paid in the year comprises:

2021
£°000

2020
£000

Nnn-voﬁng prefererice shares of £1 each

Final dividends paid in respect of pnor year but not recognised as
liabilities in that year-

Dividends. paid in respect of the year
Voting preference shares of £1 each

Final dividend paid in respect of prior year but not reéognised'as
liabilities in that year
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Esh Holdings Limited

Notes to the financial statements-
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

9 Intangible assets

Group . )
Negative :
Goodwill’ goodwill Total
£000 . £000 £°000
Cost - - ‘ ' " .
At 1 January 2021 . : ' 1,128 . (2,277) (1,149)
Acquisition - B -
Disposal ' - - -
At-31 December 2021 - 1,128 2,277) (1,149)
Accumulated amortisation ) ] )
At 1 January 2021 . 1,128 22770 - (1,149)
Disposal ) o . A - ) .
.Charged in year o ’ - - -
At 31 December 2021 . 1,128 (2,277 (1,149)
Net book value . e . - .
At 31 December 2021 ’ v - - -

At 31 December 2020 A o - - .

The directors consider each acquisition separately for the purpose of determining the amortisation period of any
goodwill that arises. The following sets out the periods over which goodwill is amortised and the reasons for the.
~ periods chosen:

Positive goodwill arising on a number of acquisitions is being amortised over a period of 10 ‘'years, the period
over which the directors consider that the group will derive continuing economic benefit.
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ESl_l Hbldings Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

10 Tangible assets

Group .

Freehold land Lensghold Plant and

and buildings properties machinery - “Total
_ £000 - £000 - . £'000 £000
Cost . o \ : .
At January 2021 : 7,182 56 9,556 16,794
Additions - - 11 536 547
Disposals ) ' - (L107) - (1,109)
At 31 December 2021 7,180 .67 8,985 16,232
Accumulated depreciation - .
At 1 January 2021 T 548 23 ’ 6,633 7,204
Charge foryear o1 9 ' 827 : 927
On disposals e - T (974 . (974)
At 31 December 2021 639 32 6,486 - 7,157
Net book value A ' ' ‘
At 31 December 2021 : 6,541 35 2,499 9,075
At 31 Decentber 2020 6,634 - 33 2,923 © . 9,590°

" Included in the total net book value of plarit and machinery is £nil (2020: £nil) in respect of assets held under
finance leases and similar hire purchase contracts. Depreciation for the year on these assets is disclosed in note
2. :

A
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'Notes to the financial statements ‘
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

10 Tangible assets (continued) .

Company . ) :
: Freghold land ~ Plant and
and buildings machinery Total
£2000 " £2000 £°000
Cost , . . . ' . o
"At ] Jahuary 2021 . . ‘ ' 7170 . 643 7,813
Additions . ) 60 60
Disposals ’ ‘ g e SR (4 (6y
At 31 December 2021 B .T168 . 699 7,867
Accumulated depreciation o -
At 1 January 2021 ' o535 . 589 1,124
Charge for year ' 9 25 ‘116
Disposals _ J ' - RN )} Q) -
. At 31 December 2021 - 626 . 612 1,238
Net book value . . ’
At 31 December 2021 6,541 88 6,629
At 31 December 2020 ’ 6,635 54 6,689

Included in the total net book vz_ilue of plant and machinefy is £nil (2020: £nil) in respect of assets held under

finance leases and similar hire purchase contracts. Depreciation for the year on these assets- was £nil (2020: £nil).
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (contmued)

11 Investment properties .

Group - Company

_ £:000 _£000
Valuation and net book value '
At | January 2021 E ' 387 387
~ Additions o . - -
Disposal . S ’ _ - .
Fair value movements . ' . - -

At 31 December 2021 . : 387 387

The fair ynlues'of the Group's investment propeity at December 31, 2021 and 2020 have been based on the
market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar properties, where the market rentals
of all lettable units of the properties are assessed by reference to the rentals achieved in the Jettable units as well
.as other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate adopted is made by reference
to the yield rates observed by the valuers for similar properties in the locality and adjusted based on the valuers’
knowledge of the factors speciﬁ(; to the respective properties / other methods. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their current use. There has been no change to the valuation
technique during the year. -

The directors have rev1ewed the open market value of investment propertles at the year end and consnder the
carrying values to be equwalent 1o open market values.

The historica} cost of the Group’s investment properties is £387,000 (2020: £387,000).

The historical cost of the Company's investment properties is £387,000 (2020: £387,000).
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Notes to the financial statements ~.
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

12 Investments

Group
Shares Loans ¢  Sharesin Loans to.
in joint to joint  participating  participating
ventures ventures interests . interests Total
£000 £°000. . 2000 £000 - £000
Cost - : :
At1January 2021 ‘ - 638 60 9,510 . 10,208
Reclassifications . . - (638) 60 142 (436)
Additions . ' - 13M4 - ' 181 1,555
Repayments - - - - -
Disposal . - : - - K - -
At 31 December 2021 ' - 1,374 120 9,833 11327
Provisions B » '

" At January 2021 - - (366) 600) - (375) (1.341)
Reclassifications : - U366 600 (530) 436
Disposal . - - - : - -
At 31 December 2021 - - - (905) - (905)

" Share of post-acquisition '
reserves '
At 1 January 2021 . 315 - - : - 315
Retained profits less losses 236 . A - - 236
Disposal ' ‘ - - - - -
At 31 December 2021 " 551 S - - 551

* Net book value ’ . ) .

At 31 December 2021 551 1,374 129 8,928 10,973

At 31 December 2020 ] 315 272 (540) 9,135 9,182
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (contmued)

12 Investments (contmued)

Cdmpany . ]
’ Shares Loans to Shares Loans Loans to Total
ingroup subsidiaries in joint.  to joint participating £000
undertakings £000 ventures ventures interests ’
£°000 £000 £'000 £000
Cost | .
At 1 January 2021 26,407 556 398 366 564 28,291
Addition - - - - 167 167
- Disposal - - - - - L
At 31 December 2021 26,407 556 398 366 . 731 28,458
Provisions o _ A B A
At 1 January 2021 (20,698) (556) (398) (366) - (22,018)
Disposal L Co - - . Ca - -
Impairment ' . - - - - - -
At 31 December 2021 (20,698) (556) (398) . (366) S (22,018)
Net book value ' ’ v
At 31 December 2021 - 5,709 - - : 731 6441
- - - 565 6,274

At 31 December 2020 5,709

" At the end of 2020 the directors conducted a review of the carrying Vvalues of the company’s investments in
subsidiary undertakings. Based on this the carrying value of the investments are considered to be recoverable.

55




‘Esh Holdings Limited

Notes to the financial stateménts A o
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued) -

12 Investmenfs (contiliued)

The undertakings in which the Cémpany’s interest at the year-end is more than 20% are as follows:

Proportion
of voting

. . rights and
Subsidiary undertakings shares held Nature of business
ABC Rental Properties Limited! 100% Property letting
Boathouse Lane Projects Limited', 100% Land and property develbpmént
Border Construction (Holdings) Limited'? 100% . Civil engineering and building contractor
Border Construction Limited' 100% * Civil engineering and building contractor
David Wilkinson Building Contractors Limited’ 100% Dormant
Deerness Fencing & Landscapl}xg Limited 100% Fencing contractor
Dunelm (Bowburn) Limited' 100% Land and property development
Dunelm Homes (Seaham) Limited! 100% " Housebuilder
Dunelm Homes Limited 100% - Housebuilder
Dunelm National Projects Limited' 100%: _ Property development -

- Dunelm Property Services Limited* 100%0 Social housiﬂg ~ refurbishment of new build
Esh Acorn Homes Limited! 100% Housebuilder - : )
Esh Construction Limited 100% Civil engineering and building contractor
Esh Developments Limited - 100% Land and property development
Esh EBT Trustee Limited 100% Non- trading
Esh Homes Limited 100% Housebuilder
Esh Remedios Limited'2 51% Site investigation
J Tonks (Transport) Limited 100% Waste disposal and recycling
Lumsden & Carroll Limited’ 100% Commercial builder '
Remedios Limited"? 75% Site investigation
Stephen Easten Building Limited' 100% - Commercial builder
Tonks Recycling Limited 100% Waste disposal and recycling

_ Tursdale Business Park Limited! 419%+12.5%  Property letting
Tursdale Recycling Limited ©100% Waste disposal and recycling
Wilkinson Facilities Services Limited' . 100% - Property and Facilities Mdnagement ’
Joint ventures
Boathoyse Lane (Freehold) Limited! 50%% Non-trading
Eastbourne JV Limited 50% Housebuilder
Esh Energy Limited' 49% Dissolved 19% November 2019
Esh Stantec Ltd 50% Civil engineering. '

" Esh Salutation Roed Limited " 50% Housebuilder
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (contmued)

12 Investments (continued)

Proportion
of voting

. rights and
Subsidiary undertakings shares held Nature of business
Joint ventures (conﬁnuéd)
Heighington JV Limited 50% Housebuilder
West Park JV Limited 50% Housebuilder
Middleton St George JV Limited - 50% Housebuilder '
Prestige Exclusive Homes Limited! 50% Property development N

7

Participating interests
Philaﬂelphia Estates Limited' +30% Property letting
Philadelphia Properties Limited' +30% Pioperty letting T "
Speed 8767 Limited! +30% Property letting '
Esh Space The Park Limited! 15% Property development
M62 Developments Limited’ 43% Dormant

*yoting  +equity. 'investment bield indirectly Scottish registered company

Investments are held dlrect]y by Esh Holdings Limited (except where noted). All holdings represent ordinary
share capital, ‘and with the exception of those noted above all companies are incorporated in England.

The registered off' ice of Esh Holdings Limited is Esh House, Bowburn North Industrial Estate, Durham DHé6
SPF. All subsidiaries are also regnstered at Esh House.

13 Stocks
] Crp'up » Company
. 2021 2020 . 2021 . 2020 -
£°000 £'000 2000 £000
Land stocks and work in progress 213 3,021 - =
Raw materials and consumables 600 524 P .
813

3,545 - -

Ttie amount of siock recognised as an expense during the year was £4,235.007 (2020: £14,441,864).

There is no significant difference between the replacement cost of the stock and it's carrying amount.
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Notes to the financial statements N
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

14 Debtors amounts falling due within one year

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
. £000 . £000 . £°000 £000
Trade debtors i 6,665 10,369 - 28 - 165 -
Amounts recoverable on contracts 25,831 _ 19,514 - -
Amounts owed by group undertakings 10,557 -10;584 23,952 - 24,805
Deferred tax (note 17) 3,077 2,418 ‘ 183 174
VAT receivable _ . A . __— .y
Amounts owed by ﬁndenakings in which
the entity has a participating interest . .
(note 25) E 1,548 814 5 22
Corporation tax recoverable s R - 28 -
Other debtors - . 149 669 194 - 274
Prepayments and accrued income . 1,404 1,391 . 394 498
' 49,231 45759 24,784 25,938

- 15 Creditors: amounts.faﬂing due within one year

Group . Company

2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 - £000 £000 £'000
Bank loans and overdrafts (note 16) ‘ - : 472 - 472
Payments received on account . 5,625 6,071 . - -
Trade creditors o - 8954 6,753 T2 532
Amounts owed to group undertakings - - 15,725 C 17514
Amounts owed to undertakings in which '
the entity has a participating interest
(note 25) - 68 . - . -
Comporationtax - 58 308 - 54
Other taxation and social security 4,983 3591 350 252
Other creditors 2119 152 642 36
Accruals and deferred income : 137,635 - 35,532 819 - 375

59,371 54,317 17,958 19,235
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Notes to the financial statements .

for the year ended 31 December 2021 '(continued)'

16 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

- Group

Company
2021 2020 2021 2020 -
- £°000 £000 £°000 £000
Bank loans and overdrafts - 960 - -
Other loans ' - - - -
- 960 - -
;\nalysis of debt ‘ .
Group’ Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
. £°000 £'000 £°000 £000
Debt can be analysed as falling due:
In one year or less, or on demand “ 472 - R
Between one and two years - 960 - -
Between two and five years - - - -
in five years or more - - - -
- 1,432 . -

_ Further details of bank loans are provided below .

The Group has access to a £9.2m loan facility Wthh is secured against assets of the business as specified in note
22. Funds can be drawn down against the unpaid client applications and sales invoices in Esh Constructlon
Limited and Deerness Fencing & Landscaping Limited. [nterest is charged by a means of a fixed monthly charge
of £40.6k for the first £7.0m and 0.58% on any amounts drawn above that level. At 31 December 2021 the
balance drawn on the loan was £(248)l\ (2020: £47"k)

The Groups Chilton Moor Development was funded by means of a project sﬁeciﬁc loan. At 31 December 2021
the balance drawn on the loan was £nil (2020: £960k).
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Notes to tiie financial sfatements
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

17 Provisions for deferred tax

Groinp Company
4 £000 £'000
Provision for deferred tax: : )
At 1 January 2021 (note 14) p . (2,418) (174)
Credit to the profit and loss current year (note 7) o ‘ ©(659) - - (26)
Adjustment in re'spect of prior period - . (102) -
Credit to the profit and loss prior year (note 7)  ~ ' 102 - 17
At 31 December 2021 : . (3,077 (183)
The elements of deferred taxation are as follows:
Group Company Group Company .
2021 2021 2020 - 2020
£°000 £000 £°000. £'000
Differences between accumulated ' t - :
_ depreciation and capital allowances (605) 660 ~ (256) 499
. " Short term differences : 33 e - 3)
On losses carried forward - - 3,647 827) - 2674 -{669)

Total =~ - A " 3,075 - (183) 2,418

(174)
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18 Financial instruments

Group
The Group has the following financial instruments: .
‘ ' Note 2021 12020
£'000- £000
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
Trade debtors 14 6,665 10,369
Prepayments and accrued income 14 1,404 1,391
Amounts recoverable on contracts ) 14 25,831 . 19,514
Amounts owed by group undertakings - 14 10,557 10,584
Amounts owed by undertakings in which the entity has a . .
participating interest . 14 1,548 814
Other debtors 14 149 669
46,154 43,341
, Financial liabilitie§ measured at amortised cost:
Bank loans and overdrafts 15/16 . - 1,432
Amounts owed to undertakings in which the entity has a - :
participating interest 15 - 68
Payments received on account 15 5,625 6,071
‘ Trade creditors 15 8,954 6,753
‘ Other loans -16 - = -
Other creditors 15 2,119 1,522
Accruals and deferred income 15 37,635 35,532
Qther taxation and sociat security i5 4,983 3,591
59,316 54,969
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18 - Financial instruments (continued) -

Company - ‘
The Company has the following financial instruments:
. 2021 2020
. Note .£°000 £000
Financial assets measured at amortised cost: .
Trade debtors o 14 28 165 -
i’repayments and accrued income . 14 394 498
Amounts owed by group undertakings ) 14 23,952 24,805
Amounts owed by undertakings in which the entity hasa .
participating interest : 14 5 22
Other debtors ' 14 194 274
Corporation tax 14 28 -
VAT receivable 14 - -
’ (24,601 - 25,765
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Bank loans and overdrafts 15/16 .- 472
Amounts owed to group undertakings " 15 15,725 17,514
Trade creditors ¢ ' 15 422 532
Other creditors 15 642 36
Accruals and deferred income 5 ' 15 819 375
Other taxation and social security 15 350 252
19,181

17,958
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19 Called up share capital .

Group and company .
2021 . 2020

Number Number
. . of shares £000 of shares £000
Allotted, called up, issued and fully paid . ’ )
Non-voting ordinary shares of 0.1p each ' 9,334,967 10 9,834,967 10
Variable dividend ordinary shares of £1 each 14,286,791 14,287 14,286,791 14,287
Voting preference shares of £1 each. 7,959,638 7,959 ‘ 7,959,638 7,959
‘ 32,081,396 - 22,256 . 32,081,396 22,256

Non-voting ordinary shares )
Shareholders are entitled to such dividend as may be declared by the Board subject to preferential rights of the

voting and non-voting preference shares. Not entitled to vote. On a return of assets, liquidation. or winding up
entitled to amounts paid up plus balance of any surplus after settlement of rights of other classes of share.

'Variable dividend ordinary shares : '
A Shareholders are entitled to such dividend as declared by Board subject to preferential rights of the voting and

non-voting preference shares. Not entitled to vote. On return of assets, liquidations or winding up -entitled to
payment of £1.50 per share, in priority to non-voting ordinary shares only. - :

Voting preference shares :
Shareholders are entitled to dmdends as may be declared by the Board in preference to any other class of share

other than non-voting preference shares. Entitled to one vote per share. On liquidation, retumn of assets or winding
up they are entitled to payment of £1 per share in preference to all classes of share except non-voting preference
shares. Redeemable at Company’s option only.

The Group and Company’s other reserves are as follows:
The share premium account contains the premiu'm arising on issue of equity shares.

The retained earnings represent cumulative profits or losses, mcludmg unreahsed prof t on the re-measurement
of investment propemes net of dividends paid and other adjustments.

Employment benefit trust (EBT) resgrve consists of shares repurchased by the Group’s Employee Benefit Trust.
At the end of the year the EBT held 229,743 preference shares of £1 each (2020: 229,743), nil non-voting shares
of 0.1p each (2020: 0.1p) and 305,783 voting ordinary shares of £1 each (2020: 305,783) at a combined cost of
£640,972 (2020: £640,972).

None of the shares held by the EBT are under option to employees and none of them have been conditionally
gifted to any emplpyees. :
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20 Minority interests

Group
. £9000 .
At 1 January 2021 ' . 21
Total comprehensiv;z loss before tax attributable to minority interests 1)
At 31 December 2021 - : o .
21 Reconciliation of operating loss to operating cash flows
2021 2020
o . £000 - £000
Profit/(loss) for the financial year attributable to owners of the :
parent ) 3,328 . (4577
(Loss)/ﬁroﬁt for the financial year attributable to minority interest . 2n). 4
. Profit/(loss) for the financial year’ . 3,307 (4,573)
Tax on loss attributable to owners of the parent (283) i - (1,303)
Tax on loss attributable to minority interest . - A -
Net interest exbense ) o 93§ 1,138
Income from shares in group undertakings . ' ' - -
(Loss)/gain from sale of-investmetl\ts o o 5] st
_Profit from joint ventures . . : (2,360) < (409)
Negative goodwill on acquisition : ' -- -
Profit/(loss) on sale of fixed assets o ‘ atr) (5
Operating (loss)/profit . 1,517 (4,641)
Amortisation of intangible assets )
Depreciation of tangible assets ) . o : 927 1,175
Revaluation of investment property 4
Working capital movements
- - {Increase)/decrease in inventories’ ‘ 2,732 1,383
- {(Increase)/decrease in debtors . . . . (4,286) . '(2)
- Increase/(decrease) in payables Co ) 5,715 ° 6,828
Cash generated from operating activities . 6,605 . 4,743 .
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22 Contingent liabilities

- Banking arrangements :
The Group’ fundmg arrangements are secured by means of charges on the Land and Buildings held within Esh

Holdings Limited and Plant and Machinery held in Esh Construction Limited and Deerness Fencing &
Landscaping Limited, together with a first ranking debenture across the assets and liabilities of the key group
.trading companies including Esh Holdings Limited. The amount drawn on the facility at 31 December 2021
amounted to £nil (2020: £472k). '

There are no other known contingent liabilities.
23 Commitments

_ Capital commitments at the end of the financial year for which no provision has been made ‘are as follows:

Group - Company

2021 2020 2021 . - 2020
£000 - £'000 £°000 £000
Contracted - . 26 - -

At 31 December the Group had the following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases for each of the following periods: g

2021 2020
£000 - £000
Group
Operating leases whxch explre: . ) .
Within one year ' 161 270~
Later than one year ° ) . . ] . 431 342
More than ﬁvc'years - i .
- 592 - 612
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24 Pension scheme

Gl;ouls ) . . )

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for the year represents
contributions payable by the group to the scheme and amounted to £1,183,302 (2020: £1,376,630). Contributions
amounts to £193,970 (2020: £235,944) were payable to the scheme and are included in creditors.

Company. o : .
The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for the year represents -

contributions payable by the company to the scheme and amounted to £101,023 (2020: £188,554).

Contributions amounting to £24,175 (2020: £29,768) were payable to the scheme and are included in creditors.
25 Related party disclosures

Transactions with undertaking in which the Group has a participating interest:

Sales Purchases " Debtors Creditors

2021 2020 . . 2021 2020 2021 -2020 2021 2020
£°000 £000_ " £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 -£'000 £°000

Esh Space The Park Limited

Loan ' - - - - - - -
Micropump (NE) Ltd. .

Trade - 9 - 55 1 - - §

Loan . ' - - Co- - - 21 - -

- Prestige Exclusive Homes ‘
Limited -

Trade e - C- - - 7 . -
- Loan - - - - 300 290 - -
‘Middleton St George JV ’ '
Limited - : . :

Trade 436 276 - o 64 56 . - B!
Eastbourne JV Limited . .

Trade 97 - S - - 18 - 30

Loan ' - - - - - - - -
West Park JV Limited . ) . ) .

Trade . 8,386 ° 5,693 - - 729 3713 - -
Salutation Road : ' . :

Trade : ) - 4" 18 - - 12 10

Loan : ’ - - - - - - - -
Heighington JV Ltd 3

Trade s 347 - 6 16 49 - 19
Esh DBC Limited : ’ .

Trade . 1068 - - - 173 - - -

Loan ' - - - " - - - R -
Neasham Road JV Limited . .

Trade 2,543 261

12,625 6,325 4 80 1,548 814 12 68
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25 Related party disclosures (continued)
Other than the transactions disclosed above, the Company’s other related party transactions were with wholly
owned subsidiaries and so have not been disclosed.

_The Group do not have any compensation to key management personnel (other than directors) as disclosed in
note 3.

26 Ultlmate parent company and parent undertakmg of Iargest group of
which the company is a member ' -

~ The Company is a subsidiary undertaking of Esh Investments lelted the ultimate and immediate parent
company incorporated in England and Wales. :

The largest group in which the results of the Compaﬁy are consolidated is that headed by Esh Investments
Limited, incorporated in England and Wales. The consolidated financial statements of this group are available to
the public and may be obtained from Companies House.

The directors do not consider there to be an individual ultimate controlling party.
27 Post balance sheet events .

In January 2022, the group disposed of its entire interest in Deerness Fencing & Landscaping Limited. As the
company was 100% owned throughout 2021, it is included within these Group financial statements.

Deerness Fencing was sold to a company that is ultimately coritrolled by Michael Hogan, who is the major
shareholder in Esh Investments Limited, and so is a related party.

The company was sold for balance sheet value at 31 December 2021, therefore there is a negllg1ble effect on
the Net Assets of the Group.
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